STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

PROPOSED REVISION TO STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN



SUBMITTAL NUMBER 2022-04

CHAPTER 62-204, F.A.C., AIR POLLUTION CONTROL - GENERAL PROVISIONS REPEALS AND AMENDMENTS

August 12, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROPOSED REVISION TO STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN	4
Introduction	4
Background	5
Details of Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Rule Repeals and Amendments	5
SIP Development Process	10
Response to 40 CFR Part 51, Appendix V, Criteria	11
Administrative Materials	11
Technical Support	13
Exceptions	14
Materials Proposed to be Incorporated into Florida's SIP	15
62-204.100 Purpose and Scope	16
62-204.200 Definitions	17
62-204.220 Ambient Air Quality Protection	22
62-204.240 Ambient Air Quality Standards	23
62-204.260 Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases Increments).	
62-204.320 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas	25
62-204.340 Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Mainte	
Areas	
62-204.360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas	31
62-204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plane	
Revisions	
62-204.500 Conformity	
Legal Authority State Administrative Materials	
Certification Package for Rule Repeals effective February 16, 2012	
• •	
Certification Package for Rule Amendments effective October 23, 2016 Public Participation	
-	
Notice of Opportunity to Submit Comments and Participate in Public Hearing	
Local Program and District Office Assistance to the Public	
Public Comments on Pre-Hearing SIP Notice	
DEP Response to Public Comments	80

Pre-Hearing Submittal Letter	81
EPA Comments on Pre-Hearing Submittal	83
DEP Response to EPA Comments	84
APPENDIX A - Chapter 62-204, F.A.C Coded Copy of Repealed Rules	85
APPENDIX B Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. – Coded Copy to be Removed from Florida SIP	98
APPENDIX C Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C. – Coded Copy	00

PROPOSED REVISION TO STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Submittal Number 2022-04 Repeals of and Amendments to Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control – General Provisions

Introduction

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) is proposing a revision to Florida's State Implementation Plan (SIP) under the Clean Air Act (CAA). This proposed SIP revision consists of the removal of eight Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) rule sections and amendments to one F.A.C. rule section. The effective dates of the rules and rule amendments in the F.A.C. are tied to rule sections. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) incorporates F.A.C. rules into Florida's SIP on a section-by-section basis according to their state-established effective dates. The rule sections that DEP is requesting be removed from Florida's SIP or amended within Florida's SIP are contained in Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., "Air Pollution Control – General Provisions."

For reasons detailed below, DEP determined that the following F.A.C. rule sections were obsolete or unnecessary, and these rule sections were repealed on February 16, 2012. DEP hereby requests that EPA approve the removal of these repealed rule sections from Florida's SIP:

- 1. Rule 62-204.100, F.A.C., "Purpose and Scope"
- 2. Rule 62-204.200, F.A.C., "Definitions"
- 3. Rule 62-204.220, F.A.C., "Ambient Air Quality Protection"
- 4. Rule 62-204.240, F.A.C., "Ambient Air Quality Standards"
- 5. Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., "Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments)"
- 6. Rule 62-204.320, F.A.C., "Procedures for Delegation and Redesignation of Areas
- 7. Rule 62-204.360, F.A.C., "Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas"
- 8. Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C., "Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions"

Though not repealed, DEP requests that Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., "Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas," also be removed from Florida's SIP because it is unnecessary. As adopted into the SIP, Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., effective March 13, 1996, lists out-of-date area designations and includes the unnecessary requirement to publish notice of the effective date of any redesignation. Florida's current area designations can be found in 40 CFR 81.310, which DEP has adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., "Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference."

Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C., "Conformity," was amended through state rulemaking on October 23, 2016, and DEP hereby requests that the EPA approve this revision into Florida's SIP.

Background

The amendments to Chapter 62-204, "Air Pollution Control – General Provisions," F.A.C., include eight separate rule repeals, effective February 16, 2012, which removed duplicative and unnecessary requirements, and revisions to one rule effective October 23, 2016, which updated citations. Documentation of the state rule development process for each set of amendments is included in the "State Administrative Materials" section of this submittal.

Details of Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Rule Repeals and Amendments

(See **Appendix A** for coded language of each repealed rule.)

(See **Appendix B** for coded language of Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., which is being requested to be removed from Florida's SIP as the rule is unnecessary.)

(See **Appendix C** for coded language of amended rule.)

Rule	Action	Reason		
62-204.100 Purpose and	Repealed	No longer necessary as the rule contained purely		
Scope	2/16/2012	explanatory language.		
62-204.200 Definitions				
(1) Actual Emissions	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	62-210.200, "Definitions," since 2006, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(2) Administrator	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	62-210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1996,		
		became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(3) Air Pollutant	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(4) Air Pollution	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	12 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(5) Air Quality Control	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
Region	2/16/2012	62-210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1996,		
		became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(6) Ambient Air Quality	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which had been		
Standard	2/16/2012	in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1996,		
(a) National Ambient Air		became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
Quality Standard		The 62-210.200 definition was subsequently		
(b) Primary Standard		revised on 10/23/2013 to clarify where the standard		
(c) Secondary Standard		is specified in the CFR.		
(d) State Ambient Air				
Quality Standard				
(7) Baseline Area	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition has been in 62-		
	2/16/2012	, ,		
		210.200 definition was revised on 3/28/2012, and it		
		became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on that date.		

Rule	Action	Reason		
(8) Baseline Concentration	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition had been in 62-		
	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 2006. The 62-		
!		210.200 definition was revised on 3/28/2012, and it		
!		became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on that date.		
(9) Cause or Contribute	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(10) Clean Air Act (CAA) or	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
Act	2/16/2012	62-210.200, "Definitions," since 1994, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(11) Department	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	62-210.200, "Definitions," since 1994, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(12) Emission	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(13) Emission Limiting	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in		
Standard or Emission	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became		
Standard or Emission		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
Limitation or				
Performance Standard				
(14) Emissions Unit				
	2/16/2012			
(15) F	D 1 1			
Agency or EPA	2/16/2012			
(16) Facility	Danaslad			
(16) Facility				
	2/10/2012			
(17) Federal Land Manager	Danaslad			
(17) Federal Land Wallager				
	2/10/2012			
(18) Indian Governing Rody	Renealed	11		
(10) mulan Governing Body	-	<u> -</u>		
	2/10/2012			
(19) Indian Reservation	Renealed			
(17) maian Reservation		<u> </u>		
	2/10/2012			
		1 1		
		* * * *		
		6		
(14) Emissions Unit (15) Environmental Protection Agency or EPA (16) Facility (17) Federal Land Manager (18) Indian Governing Body (19) Indian Reservation	Repealed 2/16/2012 Repealed 2/16/2012 Repealed 2/16/2012 Repealed 2/16/2012 Repealed 2/16/2012 Repealed 2/16/2012	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since 1994, became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. Duplicative. The same definition, which had been in 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became applicable for Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. Duplicative. The same definition which had been in 210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1993, became applicable for Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012. This 62-210.200 definition was subsequently repealed on 10/23/2013 because it was no longer needed.		

Rule	Action	Reason		
(20) Major Source Baseline Date	Repealed 2/16/2012	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1998,		
Date	2/10/2012	became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on		
		3/28/2012.		
(21) Marginal Nonattainment	Repealed	State definition not needed as nonattainment area		
Area for Ozone	2/16/2012	classifications are specified in 40 CFR Part 81.		
(22) Minor Source Baseline	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition had been in 62-		
Date	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1998. The		
		62-210.200 definition was revised on 3/28/2012,		
		and it became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on that date.		
(23) Moderate Nonattainment	Repealed	State definition not needed as nonattainment area		
Area for Ozone	2/16/2012	classifications are specified in 40 CFR Part 81.		
(24) Modification	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been		
	2/16/2012	in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since 1994, became		
		applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.		
(25) Nonattainment Area	Repealed	State definition not needed as nonattainment area		
	2/16/2012	designations are specified in 40 CFR Part 81.		
(26) Particulate Matter	Repealed			
	2/16/2012	in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1998,		
		became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on		
(27) DM		3/28/2012. Districtive The same definition had been in 62		
$(27) \text{ PM}_{10}$		Duplicative. The same definition had been in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1996. The		
		62-210.200 definition was revised on 3/28/2012,		
	Repealed	and it became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on that		
	2/16/2012	date. The 62-210.200 definition was revised on		
		7/3/2018 to clarify when to consider condensable		
		PM.		
(28) Redesignation of an	Repealed	State definition not needed as area redesignations		
Area	2/16/2012	are specified in 40 CFR Part 81.		
(29) Significant Impact	Repealed	Duplicative. The same definition had been in 62-		
	2/16/2012	210.200, "Definitions," since at least 1996. The		
		62-210.200 definition was revised to include PM _{2.5}		
		on 3/28/2012, and it became applicable to Chapter		
		62-204 on that date.		

Rule	Action	Reason
(30) State Implementation Plan (SIP) or Implementation Plan	Repealed 2/16/2012	Duplicative. The same definition, which has been in 62-210.200, "Definitions," since 6/29/2011, became applicable to Chapter 62-204 on 3/28/2012.
62-204.220 Ambient Air Qua		
(1)	Repealed 2/16/2012	Duplicative. This requirement can be found at 62-212.300(1)(b), F.A.C.
(2)	Repealed 2/16/2012	Duplicative. This requirement can be found at 62-212.300(1)(c), F.A.C.
(3)	Repealed 2/16/2012	This is a federal requirement. However, if monitoring is required by an owner or operator for air quality analysis, 62-212.400(7), <i>Air Quality Analysis</i> , points to 40 CFR 52.21(m), and 40 CFR 52.21(m)(3) points to Part 58.
(4)	Repealed 2/16/2012	This is a federal requirement. However, if modeling is required, 62-212.400(6), <i>Air Quality Models</i> , points to 40 CFR 52.21(l), which points to Appendix W of Part 51.
62-204.240 Ambient Air Quality Standards	Repealed 2/16/2012	Contained redundant and obsolete standards. The definition of <i>Ambient Air Quality Standard</i> , found in 62-210.200, F.A.C, points to the current standards in 40 CFR Part 50, NATIONAL PRIMARY AND SECONDARY AMBIENT AIR QUALITY STANDARDS, adopted and incorporated by reference in 62-204.800, F.A.C. The standards in 62-204.240, F.A.C., have not functioned as state-only standards for any purpose and were intended to reference the federal ambient air quality standards. Only two other rules, 62-204.220, F.A.C., and 62-204.320, F.A.C., included a cross-reference to 62-204.240, F.A.C. However, all three of these rules were repealed on 2/16/2012, and DEP is requesting that all three rules be removed from the SIP.
62-204.260 Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments)	Repealed 2/16/2012	Redundant. 62-210.200, F.A.C., includes a definition for "PSD increment" which points to the federal PSD increments at 40 CFR 52.21(c), adopted and incorporated by reference in 62-204.800, F.A.C.
62-204.320 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas	Repealed 2/16/2012	Unnecessary. The rule language only restated Federal Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas in 40 CFR Part 81.

Rule	Action	Reason		
62-204.340 Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas	Effective 3/13/1996	Unnecessary. This rule includes the unnecessary requirement to publish notice of the effective date of any redesignation in the Florida Administrative Register and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected. Additionally, the rule lists out-of-date area designations. Current area designations can be found in 40 CFR 81.310, which is adopted and incorporated by reference in 62-204.800, F.A.C.		
62-204.360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas	Repealed 2/16/2012	Repealed Redundant. Baseline areas, minor source baseline dates, <i>Class I Area</i> , and <i>Class II Area</i> are each		
62-204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions	Repealed 2/16/2012	I regularements in ALLE BR 31 Subport B. adopted and		
62-204.500 Conformity	Amended 10/23/16	Citations were outdated and needed to be revised to reflect the federal transfer of conformity requirements from 40 CFR Part 51 Subpart W, "Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans," to 40 CFR Part 93 Subpart B, "Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans." Because of this federal citation revision, 40 CFR Part 93 Subpart B was adopted and incorporated by reference in its entirety in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., and references in 62-204.500, F.A.C., were updated.		

SIP Development Process

Section 403.061(35), Florida Statutes, authorizes DEP to "exercise the duties, powers, and responsibilities required of the state under the federal Clean Air Act." These duties and responsibilities include the development and periodic updating of Florida's SIP. Pursuant to this statutory authority, DEP has developed this proposed SIP revision.

All of the rule amendments addressed in this proposed SIP revision were adopted in accordance with Florida administrative procedures, which include publication in the Florida Administrative Register of proposed rule language and notice of the opportunity to submit comments, request a rule adoption hearing, or participate in any scheduled rule adoption hearing. Documentation of the state rule development process for each set of rule amendments is included in the "State Administrative Materials" section of this submittal.

In accordance with 40 CFR 51.102, DEP published a notice in the FAR on July 6, 2022, announcing an opportunity for the public to submit comments and request a public hearing to be held on August 8, 2022, if requested, regarding the proposed revision to Florida's SIP. DEP did not receive any comments on the proposed revision, and no public hearing was requested.

In accordance with the 30-day notice requirement of 40 CFR 51.102, a pre-hearing submittal providing details of the proposed SIP revision was transmitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) on July 6, 2022, and DEP also transmitted a copy of the public notice to Florida's local air pollution control programs.

Response to 40 CFR Part 51, Appendix V, Criteria

Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Appendix V, the following materials shall be included in State Implementation Plan (SIP) submissions for review and approval by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Administrative Materials

- (a) A formal signed, stamped, and dated letter of submittal from the Governor or his designee, requesting EPA approval of the plan or revision thereof (hereafter "the plan").
- A copy of the "Letter of Submittal," signed by the Director of the Division of Air Resource Management, Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), on behalf of the Governor of the State of Florida, is submitted with this document.
- (b) Evidence that the State has adopted the plan in the State code or body of regulations; or issued the permit, order, consent agreement (hereafter "document") in final form. That evidence shall include the date of adoption or final issuance as well as the effective date of the plan, if different from the adoption/issuance date.

• This proposed revision to Florida's SIP consists of the following F.A.C. rule sections as amended or repealed effective upon the dates shown in the table below.

F.A.C. Rule	Title	State Effective Date
62-204.100	Purpose and Scope	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.200	Definitions	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.220	Ambient Air Quality Protection	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.240	Ambient Air Quality Standards	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.260	Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments)	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.320	Procedures for the Designation and Redesignation of Areas	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.340	Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas	Effective 3/13/1996 (requesting removal from the SIP)
62-204.360	Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.400	Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions	Repealed 2/16/2012
62-204.500	Conformity	Amended 10/23/2016

Copies of each set of rule amendments/repeals may be found in the "Materials Proposed to be Incorporated into the SIP" section of this submittal. Certified copies of each set of rule amendments and accompanying documentation, as filed with the Florida Secretary of State for adoption into the F.A.C., may be found in the "State Administrative Materials" section of this submittal.

(c) Evidence that the State has the necessary legal authority under State law to adopt and implement the plan.

- DEP has the necessary legal authority to adopt and implement this proposed revision to Florida's SIP. References to the pertinent Florida Statutes and Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) rules may be found in the "Legal Authority" section of this submittal.
- (d) A copy of the actual regulation, or document submitted for approval and incorporation by reference into the plan, including indication of the changes made (such as redline/strikethrough) to the existing approved plan, where applicable. The submission shall include a copy of the official State regulation/document, signed, stamped, and dated by the appropriate State official indicating that it is fully enforceable by the State. The effective date of any regulation/document contained in the submission shall, whenever possible, be indicated in the regulation/document itself; otherwise the State should include a letter signed, stamped, and dated by the appropriate State official indicating the effective date. If the regulation/document provided by the State for approval and incorporation by reference into the plan is a copy of an existing publication, the State submission should, whenever possible, include a copy of the publication cover page and table of contents.
- Certified copies of all repeals and rule amendments, as filed with the Florida Secretary of State for adoption into the F.A.C., may be found in the "State Administrative Materials" section of this submittal.
- (e) Evidence that the State followed all of the procedural requirements of the State's laws and constitution in conducting and completing the adoption/issuance of the plan.
- DEP has complied with all state procedural requirements in adoption of the rules proposed to be incorporated into the SIP. Evidence of compliance with these requirements is provided by certification of the materials filed with the Florida Secretary of State for adoption of the rules and rule amendments into the F.A.C. These materials may be found in the "State Administrative Materials" section of this submittal.
- State law (s. 120.525, F.S.) requires DEP to provide notice of all public meetings, hearings, and workshops in the Florida Administrative Register (FAR) not less than seven days before the event. Through publication in the FAR of the notice of opportunity to participate in a SIP public hearing, if requested, at least 30 days before the event, DEP has complied with all state procedural requirements relevant to the development of this proposed SIP revision. A copy of this notice may be found in the "Public Participation" section of this submittal.
- (f) Evidence that public notice was given of the proposed change consistent with procedures approved by EPA, including the date of publication of such notice.

- DEP has complied with all public hearing requirements of 40 CFR 51.102. Copies of all relevant notices and notification emails may be found in the "Public Participation" section of this submittal.
- (g) Certification that public hearing(s) were held in accordance with the information provided in the public notice and the State's laws and constitution, if applicable and consistent with the public hearing requirements in 40 CFR 51.102.
- Certification of compliance with all state and federal public notice and hearing requirements is provided in the "Letter of Submittal."
- (h) Compilation of public comments and the State' response thereto.
- Written comments received during the public notice period on this proposed SIP revision, and DEP's response thereto, may be found in the "Public Participation" section of this submittal.

Technical Support

- (a) Identification of all regulated pollutants affected by the plan.
- This SIP revision addresses regulated pollutants emitted from stationary sources of air pollution, including particulate matter, volatile organic compounds, nitrogen oxides, and sulfur dioxide.
- (b) Identification of the locations of affected sources including the EPA attainment/nonattainment designation of the locations and the status of the attainment plan for the affected areas(s).
- These SIP revisions apply statewide.
- (c) Quantification of the changes in plan allowable emissions from the affected sources; estimates of changes in current actual emissions from affected sources or, where appropriate, quantification of changes in actual emissions from affected sources through calculations of the differences between certain baseline levels and allowable emissions anticipated as a result of the revision.
- No changes in allowable or actual emissions are expected as a result of the rule repeals and amendments included in this proposed SIP revision.
- (d) The State's demonstration that the national ambient air quality standards, prevention of significant deterioration increments, reasonable further progress demonstration, and visibility, as applicable, are protected if the plan is approved and implemented. For all requests to redesignate an area to attainment for a national primary ambient air quality standard, under section 107 of the Act, a revision must be submitted to provide for the maintenance of the national primary ambient air quality standards for at least 10 years as required by section 175A of the Act.

- The rule amendments included in this proposed SIP revision relate to clarifications of regulations, or repeals of unnecessary regulations, and will not result in any pollutant emission increases. As a result, these rule amendments are protective of national ambient air quality standards (NAAQS), prevention of significant deterioration increments, and visibility, and will not interfere with measures required of Florida or any other state for reasonable further progress towards attainment of any NAAQS.
- (e) Modeling information required to support the proposed revision, including input data, output data, models used, justification of model selections, ambient monitoring data used, meteorological data used, justification for use of offsite data (where used), modes of models used, assumptions, and other information relevant to the determination of adequacy of the modeling analysis.
- No modeling has been performed to support this proposed SIP revision since no emission reduction requirements or changes in allowable or actual emissions are affected by the repealed or amended rules included in this proposed SIP revision.
- (f) Evidence, where necessary, that emission limitations are based on continuous emission reduction technology.
- Not applicable. No emission reduction technologies or allowable emission rates are established by the rules included in this proposed SIP revision.
- (g) Evidence that the plan contains emission limitations, work practice standards and recordkeeping/reporting requirements, where necessary, to ensure emission levels.
- Not applicable.
- (h) Compliance/enforcement strategies, including how compliance will be determined in practice.
- Not applicable.
- (i) Special economic and technological justifications required by any applicable EPA policies, or an explanation of why such justifications are not necessary.
- Not applicable.

Exceptions

Not applicable.

Materials Proposed to be Incorporated into Florida's SIP

In this section of the submittal, the rule amendments proposed for incorporation into the SIP are arranged by *State Citation* and, where possible, are shown in "coded" format where strikethrough denotes deleted text, and <u>underline</u> denotes new text.

Rules 62-204.100, 62-204.220, 62-204.240, 62-204.320, and 62-204.360, F.A.C., each of which had a state effective date of 3/13/1996, and each of which were last approved and incorporated into the SIP on 6/16/1999, were repealed on 2/16/2012. These 2/16/2012 repeals are included in this SIP submittal.

Rules 62-204.200 and 62-204.260, F.A.C., each of which had a state effective date of 2/12/2006, and each of which was last approved and incorporated into the SIP on 6/27/2008, were repealed on 2/16/2012. These 2/16/2012 repeals are included in this SIP submittal.

Since it was last approved and incorporated into the SIP on 6/19/1999, Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., with a state effective date of 3/13/1996, was amended with a state effective date of 10/23/2016, to point individually to 40 CFR 81.310 for designations of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas, Subsequent amendments on 4/2/2020 pointed collectively to 40 CFR 81.310 for designations of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas and removed the unnecessary requirement to publish notice of the effective date of any redesignation in the Florida Administrative Register and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation. DEP requests that Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., be removed entirely from the SIP because the requirement to publish notice of the effective date of any redesignation is unnecessary in the SIP. In addition, the rule lists out-of-date area designations. Current area designations can be found in 40 CFR 81.310, which is adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C., with a state effective date of 11/30/1994, and last approved and incorporated into the SIP on 6/16/1999, was repealed on 2/16/2012. This 2/16/2012 repeal is included in this SIP submittal.

Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C., with a state effective date of 9/1/1998, and last approved and incorporated into the SIP on 8/11/2003, was amended on 10/23/2016. These 10/23/2016 amendments are included in this SIP submittal.

Certified copies of all individual sets of rule amendments, as filed with the Florida Secretary of State for adoption into the F.A.C., may be found in the "State Administrative Materials" section of this submittal.

62-204.100 Purpose and Scope.

- (1) This chapter establishes maximum allowable levels of pollutants in the ambient air, or ambient air quality standards, necessary to protect human health and public welfare. This chapter also establishes maximum allowable increases in ambient concentrations for subject pollutants to prevent significant deterioration of air quality in areas where ambient air quality standards are being met. It further specifies approved air quality monitoring and modeling methods.
- (2) In addition, this chapter designates all areas of the state as attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable with respect to each pollutant for which ambient air quality standards have been adopted; further designates certain attainment and unclassifiable areas of the state as air quality maintenance areas for particular pollutants; classifies all areas of the state as Class I, Class II, or Class III for determining which set of prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) increments apply; and designates all attainment and unclassifiable areas of the state as one or more PSD areas for determining which pollutant specific PSD baseline dates apply. This chapter also sets forth procedures for redesignating and reclassifying areas as above.
- (3) The Department of Environmental Protection adopts this chapter to identify the Florida State Implementation Plan (SIP) required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51; to set forth the public notice and hearing requirements that the Department will adhere to for making SIP revisions; and to set forth the definitions, criteria, and procedures that the Department will use to review a federal agency's general conformity determination, made pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart W; and to adopt by reference an interagency memorandum of agreement that the Department will comply with pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart T. The provisions of 40 CFR 51.853 require that a federal agency make a general conformity determination for any federal agency action in a nonattainment or maintenance area, to ensure that such action is consistent with the SIP and that such federal conformity determination be reviewed by the affected state. The provisions of 40 CFR 51.394 require that a transportation conformity determination be made for the adoption, acceptance, approval, or support of certain transportation plans, transportation improvement programs, and transportation projects in nonattainment and maintenance areas for transportation related criteria pollutants to ensure that such actions are consistent with the SIP.
- (4) Finally, this chapter adopts and incorporates by reference federal air pollution control regulations which are referenced in whole or in part throughout the Department's air pollution control rules.

History-New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

				_62-204.100
	Date Submitted	Date Approved	Federal	
	to EPA	by EPA	Register	
Original Reg	11/22/1994	06/16/1999	64 FR 32353	
1st Revision	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346	

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.100, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.200 Definitions.

The following words and phrases when used in this chapter, unless content clearly indicates otherwise, have the following meanings:

- (1) "Actual Emissions" The actual rate of emission of a pollutant: from an emissions unit as determined in accordance with the following provisions.
 - (a) In general, actual emissions as of a particular date shall equal the average rate, in tons per year, at which the emissions unit actually emitted the pollutant during a consecutive 24—month period which precedes the particular date and which is representative of the normal operation of the emissions unit. The Department shall allow the use of a different time period upon a determination that it is more representative of the normal operation of the emissions unit. Actual emissions shall be calculated using the emissions unit's actual operating hours, production rates and types of materials processed, stored, or combusted during the selected time period.
 - (b) The Department may presume that unit-specific allowable emissions for an emissions unit are equivalent to the actual emissions of the emissions unit provided that such unit-specific allowable emissions limits are federally enforceable.
 - (c) For any emissions unit that has not begun normal operations on a particular date, actual emissions shall equal the potential emissions of the emissions unit on that date.
- (2) "Administrator" The Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency or the Administrator's designee.
- (3) "Air Pollutant" Any substance (particulate, liquid, gaseous, organic or inorganic) which if released, allowed to escape, or emitted, whether intentionally or unintentionally, into the outdoor atmosphere may result in or contribute to air pollution.
- (4) "Air Pollution" The presence in the outdoor atmosphere of the state of any one or more substances or pollutants in quantities which are or may be harmful or injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property, or unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property, including outdoor recreation.
- (5) "Air Quality Control Region" Any air quality control region designated pursuant to Section 107 of the Clean Air Act. The boundaries of the air quality control regions in Florida are set forth in 40 CFR Part 81, Sections 81.49, 81.68, 81.91, 81.95, 81.96 and 81.97, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (6) "Ambient Air Quality Standard" or "Ambient Standard" A restriction established to limit the quantity or concentration of an air pollutant that may be allowed to exist in the ambient air for any specific period of time.
 - (a) "National Ambient Air Quality Standard" means an ambient standard established by EPA and specified at 40 C.F.R. Part 50, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (b) "Primary Standard" means an ambient standard established to protect public health.
 - (c) "Secondary Standard" means an ambient standard established to protect the public welfare including the protection of animal and plant life, property, visibility and atmospheric clarity, and the enjoyment of life and property.

- (d) "State Ambient Air Quality Standard" means an ambient standard established or adopted by the Department.
- (7) "Baseline Area" The area (and every part thereof) designated as a prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) area under Rule 62-204.360, F.A.C., in which the facility or major modification establishing the minor source baseline date would construct or in which the emissions of the facility (or the significant net increase in emissions for a major modification) would have a predicted air quality impact equal to or greater than one microgram per cubic meter (annual average) of the pollutant for which the minor source baseline date is established. For purposes of this definition, "major modification" has the meaning given at Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C.
- (8) "Baseline Concentration" The ambient concentration level that exists in the baseline area at the time of the applicable minor source baseline date. A baseline concentration is determined for each pollutant for which a minor source baseline date is established and for each averaging time for which a maximum allowable increase is established in Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C.
 - (a) The baseline concentration shall include the concentration attributable to:

 1. The actual emissions representative of sources in existence on the applicable minor source baseline date, except as provided at Rule 62-204.200(8)(b), F.A.C.; and
 - 2. The federally enforceable allowable emissions of major stationary sources on which construction commenced on or before the major source baseline date but which were not in operation by the applicable minor source baseline date.
 - (b) The baseline concentration shall not include the concentration attributable to the following emissions; rather, such emissions shall affect the amount of any applicable maximum allowable increase remaining available:
 - 1. The actual emissions from any major-stationary source on which construction commenced after the major source baseline date; and 2. Any increase or decrease in the actual emissions of facilities occurring after the applicable minor source baseline date.
 - (c) For purposes of this definition, "construction" means any physical change or change in the method of operation (including fabrication, erection, installation, demolition, shutdown or modification of an emissions unit) that would result in a change in emissions; and "commence construction" has the meaning given at Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C., provided, however, that in the case of demolition or shutdown of an emissions unit, "commence construction" means that the owner or operator has permanently ceased all operations of the unit.
 - (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (b) above:
 - 1. The change in concentration attributable to any decrease in the actual emissions of a facility on which the Department has relied in demonstrating attainment, defining reasonable further progress, or issuing a permit under the provisions of Rule 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510 (transferred), 17-2.650 (transferred), 62-212.500, 62-296.500 through 62-296.570, or 62-296.700 through 62-296.712, F.A.C., shall be included in the baseline concentration and not be considered in determining the amount of any maximum allowable increase remaining available; and

- 2. Concentrations of particulate matter attributable to the increase in emissions from construction or other temporary emission-related activities of new or modified facilities shall be excluded in determining compliance with any maximum allowable increase.
- (9) "Cause or Contribute" With respect to a violation of an ambient air quality standard, to have a significant impact on the ambient air concentration of a pollutant at any locality that does not or would not meet the applicable standard.
- (10) "Clean Air Act (CAA)" or "Act" The Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. s. 7401 et seq.)
- (11) "Department" The State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection.
- (12) "Emission" The discharge or release into the atmosphere of one or more air pollutants.
- (13) "Emission Limiting Standard" or "Emission Standard" or "Emission Limitation" or "Performance Standard" Any restriction established in or pursuant to a regulation adopted by the Department which limits the quantity, rate, concentration or opacity of any pollutant released, allowed to escape or emitted, whether intentionally or unintentionally, into the atmosphere, including any restriction which prescribes equipment, sets fuel specifications, or prescribes operation or maintenance procedures for an emissions unit to assure emission reduction or control.
- (14) "Emissions Unit"- Any part or activity of a facility that emits or has the potential to emit any air pollutant.
- (15) "Environmental Protection Agency" or "EPA" The United States Environmental Protection Agency.
- (16) "Facility" All of the emissions units which are located on one or more contiguous or adjacent properties and which are under the control of the same person (or persons under common control).
- (17) "Federal Land Manager" With respect to any lands in the United States, the Secretary of the department with authority over such lands.
- (18) "Indian Governing Body" The governing body of any tribe, band, or group of Indians subject to the jurisdiction of the United States and recognized by the United States as possessing power of self-government.
- (19) "Indian Reservation" Any federally recognized reservation established by Treaty, Agreement, Executive Order, or Act of Congress.
- (20) "Major Source Baseline Date" Pursuant to 40 CFR 51.166(b)(14)(i), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.:
 - (a) In the case of particulate matter and sulfur dioxide, January 6, 1975; and
 - (b) In the case of nitrogen dioxide, February 8, 1988.
- (21) "Marginal Nonattainment Area for Ozone" The lowest category of five classifications of nonattainment for the air pollutant ozone as defined in the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. s.7511).
- (22) "Minor Source Baseline Date" Pursuant to 40 CFR 51.166(b)(14)(ii), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., the minor source baseline date for each pollutant for which maximum allowable increases have been established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., is the earliest date after August 7, 1977, for particulate matter and sulfur dioxide, and February 8, 1988, for nitrogen dioxide, that a facility or a modification subject to preconstruction review under 40 CFR 52.21, Rule 17-2.500,

- F.A.C. (transferred), or Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., submits a complete application for permit under such regulations provided that:
 - (a) On the date the complete application is filed, the area in which the facility or modification would be constructed is designated as attainment or unclassifiable for the applicable pollutant under 42 U.S.C. Section 7407(d)(1) of the Clean Air Act (if the application is filed under 40 CFR 52.21), or as a PSD area under Rule 17-2.450 (transferred), 62-275.700 (repealed) or 62-204.360, F.A.C., (if the application is filed under Rule 17-2.500 (transferred) or 62-212.400, F.A.C.); and (b) In the case of a facility, the emissions of the applicable pollutant would be equal to or greater than the significant emissions rate as defined at Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C., or, in the case of modification, there would be a significant net emissions increase of the pollutant.
- (23) "Moderate Nonattainment Area for Ozone" The second-lowest category of five classifications of nonattainment for the air pollutant ozone as defined in the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. s. 7511).
- (24) "Modification" -

Any physical change in, change in the method of operation of, or addition to a facility which would result in an increase in the actual emissions of any air pollutant subject to regulation under the Act, including any not previously emitted, from any emissions unit or facility.

- (a) A physical change or change in the method of operation shall not include:
 - 1. Routine maintenance, repair, or replacement of component parts of an emissions unit; or
 - 2. A change in ownership of an emissions unit or facility.
- (b) For any pollutant that is specifically regulated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act, a change in the method of operation shall not include an increase in the hours of operation or in the production rate, unless such change would be prohibited under any federally enforceable permit condition which was established after January 6, 1975.
- (c) For any pollutant that is not specifically regulated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act, a change in the method of operation shall not include an increase in the hours of operation or in the production rate, unless such change would exceed any restriction on hours of operation or production rate included in any applicable Department air construction or air operation permit.
- (25) "Nonattainment Area" Any area not meeting ambient air quality standards and designated as a nonattainment area under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. Such an area may be designated as a particulate, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide, carbon monoxide, lead or ozone nonattainment area, depending on which ambient standard has been violated. An area may be designated as nonattainment for more than one air pollutant. Ozone nonattainment areas may be transitional, marginal, moderate, serious, severe, or extreme as classified in Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C.
- (26) "Particulate Matter"
 - (a) With respect to concentrations in the atmosphere, particulate matter means any airborne finely divided solid or liquid material.
 - (b) With respect to emissions, particulate matter means all finely divided solid or

liquid material, other than uncombined water, emitted to the atmosphere as measured by applicable reference methods, or an equivalent or alternative method, specified in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

(27) "PM₁₀"

- (a) With respect to concentrations in the atmosphere, PM₁₀ means particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal 10 micrometers as measured by a reference method based on 40 CFR Part 50, Appendix J, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., and designated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 53 or by an equivalent method designated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 53, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (b) With respect to emissions, PM₁₀ means finely divided solid or liquid material, with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal 10 micrometers emitted to the atmosphere as measured by an applicable reference method or by an equivalent or alternative method specified in 40 CFR Part 60, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (28) "Redesignation of an Area" A change in the designation or a redefinition of the boundaries of an area for any of the designations listed under Rule 62-204.340 or 62-204.360, F.A.C.
- (29) "Significant Impact" An impact of emissions on ambient air quality in excess of any of the following pollutant-specific concentration values:
 - (a) Sulfur Dioxide.
 - 1. Maximum three-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 25.0 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 1.0 microgram per cubic meter for Class I areas; 5.0 micrograms per cubic meter for all other areas.
 - 3. Annual arithmetic mean 1.0 microgram per cubic meter.

(b) PM₁₀.

- 1. Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 1.0 microgram per cubic meter for Class I areas; 5.0 micrograms per cubic meter for all other areas.
- 2. Annual arithmetic mean 1.0 microgram per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 1.0 microgram per cubic meter. (d) Carbon Monoxide.
 - 1. Maximum one-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 2.0 milligrams per cubic meter.
 - 2. Maximum eight-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 0.5 milligram per cubic meter.
- (e) Lead. Maximum quarterly arithmetic mean 0.03 microgram per cubic meter. (30) "State Implementation Plan (SIP)" or "Implementation Plan" The EPA approved plan which Section 110 of the Clean Air Act requires a state to submit to the Administrator. The State Implementation Plan for the State of Florida, as approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, is identified in 40 CFR Part 52, Subpart K, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

History: New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, 2-12-06, Repealed 2-16-12.

			62-204.200
	Date Submitted	Date Approved	Federal
	to EPA	by EPA	Register
Original Reg	11/22/1994	06/16/1999	64 FR 32353
1st Revision	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346
2nd Revision	02/03/2006	06/27/2008	73 FR 36435

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.200, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.220 Ambient Air Quality Protection.

- (1) Except as provided in Rule 62-212.500, F.A.C., Preconstruction Review for Nonattainment Areas, or in the Reasonably Available Control Technology rules of Chapter 62-296, F.A.C., the Department shall not issue an air permit authorizing a person to build, erect, construct, or implant any new emissions unit; operate, modify, or rebuild any existing emissions unit; or by any other means release or take action which would result in the release of an air pollutant into the atmosphere which would cause or contribute to a violation of an ambient air quality standard established under Rule 62-204.240, F.A.C.
- (2) Except as provided in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), the Department shall not issue an air permit authorizing the construction or modification of any emissions unit or facility that would cause or contribute to an ambient concentration at any point within a baseline area that exceeds either the appropriate baseline concentration for the point plus the appropriate maximum allowable increase or the appropriate ambient air quality standard, whichever is less.

 (3) Ambient air quality monitors used to establish a violation of an ambient air quality standard shall meet the requirements of 40 CFR Part 58, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (4) For any provision of the air pollution rules of the Department which requires that an estimate of concentrations of pollutants in the ambient air be made, the estimates shall be based on the applicable air quality models, data bases, and other requirements approved by the Department and specified in 40 CFR Part 51, Appendix W Guideline on Air Quality Models (Revised), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62–204.800, F.A.C.

History-New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

				62-204.220
Date	Submitted	Date Approved	Federal	
to EP	PA	by EPA	Register	

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.220, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.240 Ambient Air Quality Standards.

(1) Sulfur Dioxide.

- (a) Maximum three hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 1300 micrograms per cubic meter (0.5 ppm).
- (b) Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year -- 260 micrograms per cubic meter (0.1 ppm).
- (c) Annual arithmetic mean 60 micrograms per cubic meter (0.02 ppm).

(2) PM10.

- (a) 24-hour average concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year, as determined in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 50, Appendix K, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. 150 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (b) Expected annual arithmetic mean concentration as determined in accordance with 40 CFR Part 50 Appendix K -- 50 micrograms per cubic meter.

(3) Carbon Monoxide.

- (a) Maximum one-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 35 parts per million (40 milligrams per cubic meter).
- (b) Maximum eight-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 9 parts per million (10 milligrams per cubic meter).
- (4) Ozone. Daily maximum one-hour concentration, not to be exceeded an average of more than one day per year 0.12 parts per million (235 micrograms per cubic meter).
 - (a) Exceedances. An exceedance will occur for any calendar day when the maximum hourly average concentration for that day exceeds the standard. A day with more than one hourly value exceeding the standard shall count as a single exceedance.
 - (b) Determination of Compliance with Standard. At the end of each calendar year, the number of days with maximum hourly concentrations above 0.12 ppm shall be determined as specified in Rule 62-204.220(4)(a)3., F.A.C., below, and that number averaged with the results of the immediately preceding two year's data. As long as this average remains less than or equal to 1.0, the site is in compliance. (c) Estimating the Number of Exceedances per Year. When a valid daily
 - maximum hourly average value is not available for each day of the year, the following method shall be used to account for those missing values when determining the number of exceedances for a particular calendar year. If a site has two or more observed exceedances each year, the standard is not met and no requirement exists to account for the missing values in accordance with this paragraph. The term "missing values" means all days that do not have an

associated ozone measurement. A daily maximum ozone value is the highest hourly ozone value recorded for that day. This daily maximum is considered to be valid if 75 percent of the hours from 9:01 A.M. to 9:00 P.M. (LST) were measured or if the highest hourly value is greater than the level of the standard. A missing daily maximum ozone value may be assumed to be less than the level of the standard if the valid daily maxima on both the preceding day and the following day do not exceed 75 percent of the level of the standard (0.09 ppm in this case). No assumption can be made if more than one consecutive day's data are missing. The following equation shall be used to estimate the number of exceedances for the year:

- e = v + (v/n) (N n z); where:
- e the estimated number of exceedances for the year;
- v = the number of daily values above the standard;
- n = the number of valid daily maxima;
- N the number of days in the year; and
- z the number of days assumed to be less than the standard level.

This estimated number of exceedances shall be rounded to one decimal place (fractional part equal to or greater than 0.05 rounds up).

- (5) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 100 micrograms per cubic meter (0.05 ppm).
- (6) Lead. Maximum quarterly arithmetic -- 1.5 Micrograms per cubic meter.

History-New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

				62-204.240
	Date Submitted	Date Approved	Federal	_
	to EPA	by EPA	Register	
Original Reg	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346	

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.240, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.260 Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments).

At any location within a baseline area, any increase in pollutant concentration over the baseline concentration shall be limited to the applicable amount, set forth below. For any averaging period other than the annual period, the applicable maximum allowable increase may be exceeded during one such period per year at any one location.

- (1) Class I Area Increments.
 - (a) Particulate Matter.
 - 1. PM₁₀, Annual arithmetic mean -- 4 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. PM₁₀, Twenty-four hour maximum -- 8 micrograms per cubic meter. (b) Sulfur Dioxide.
 - 1. Annual arithmetic mean -- 2 micrograms per cubic meter.

- 2. Twenty-four hour maximum -- 5 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 3. Three hour maximum -- 25 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 2.5 micrograms per cubic meter. (2) Class II Area Increments.
 - (a) Particulate Matter.
 - 1. PM₁₀, Annual arithmetic mean -- 17 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. PM₁₀, Twenty-four hour maximum -- 30 micrograms per cubic meter. (b) Sulfur Dioxide.
 - 1. Annual arithmetic mean -- 20 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. Twenty-four hour maximum -- 91 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 3. Three-hour maximum -- 512 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean -- 25 micrograms per cubic meter. (3) Class III Area Increments.
 - (a) Particulate Matter.
 - 1. PM₁₀, Annual arithmetic mean -- 34 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. PM₁₀, Twenty-four hour maximum -- 60 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - (b) Sulfur Dioxide.
 - 1. Annual arithmetic mean -- 40 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. Twenty-four hour maximum -- 182 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 3. Three hour maximum -- 700 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean -- 50 micrograms per cubic meter.

History-New 3-13-96, Amended 2-12-06, Repealed 2-16-12.

			62-204.260
	Date Submitted	Date Approved	Federal
	to EPA	by EPA	Register
Original Reg	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346
1st Revision	02/03/2006	06/27/2008	73 FR 36435

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.320 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas.

(1) General.

(a) Under Rules 62-204.340(1) through (3), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable with respect to each air pollutant for which an ambient air quality standard is established under Rule 62-204.240, F.A.C. The designation of each such area determines which emission limiting standards, new and modified facility review requirements, and other air pollution control measures shall apply to sources and activities which emit the pollutant or the precursor of the pollutant for which the area is designated. Following the redesignation of an area as nonattainment, a revision to the State Implementation Plan (SIP) may be required to establish the emission limiting

- standards and other air pollution control measures appropriate for the area. (b) Under Rule 62-204.360(1), F.A.C., all areas of the state that are not designated as nonattainment with respect to a pollutant for which a maximum allowable increase is defined in Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., shall be designated as one or more prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) areas with respect to each such pollutant. The designation of a PSD area determines the area for which a PSD baseline date shall be established.
- (c) Under Rule 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as Class I, Class II, or Class III. For an area that is designated as a PSD area, the designation of the area as Class I, II or III determines which set of maximum allowable increases in particulate matter, sulfur dioxide, and nitrogen dioxide concentrations established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., shall apply in the area after a PSD baseline date is established.
- (d) Under Rule 62-204.340(4), F.A.C., certain areas of the state shall be designated as air quality maintenance areas. Areas that have been redesignated from nonattainment to attainment or unclassifiable may be designated as air quality maintenance areas with the effect that all emission limiting standards and permit limitations that were established pursuant to Rules 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510(transferred), 17-2.650 (transferred), 62-212.500, Chapter 62-252, and the Reasonably Available Control Technology rules in Chapter 62-296, F.A.C., or otherwise as a result of the SIP or nonattainment corrective plan, and all other air pollution control measures that were required under the SIP or nonattainment corrective plan, shall remain in effect in such areas.
- (2) Redesignation of Nonattainment, Attainment, and Unclassifiable Areas (Reserved).
- (3) Reclassification of Class I, Class II and Class III Areas.
 - (a) Reclassification of an area classified under Rule 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petition for rulemaking with the Environmental Regulation Commission showing sufficient justification for such action provided that lands within the exterior boundaries of Indian Reservations may be reclassified only by the appropriate Indian Governing Body. This petition shall conform to the requirements of Section 120.54(5), Florida Statutes. The Department may also initiate reclassification procedures. All reclassifications shall be submitted as revisions to the State Implementation Plan.
 - (b) Decisions regarding whether an area should be reclassified shall be based on the following criteria.
 - 1. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class I or Class II:

 a. A public hearing shall be held in accordance with the notice requirements of Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C.

 b. At least 30 days notice of the proposed reclassification shall be given to other States, Indian Governing Bodies, and Federal Land Managers whose lands may be affected by the proposal.

 c. A description and analysis of the health, environmental, economic, social, and energy effects of the proposed reclassification shall be prepared and made available for public inspection at least 30 days prior to the hearing. The notice shall state the availability of the required analysis.

d. If the reclassification includes any Federal lands, the state shall notify the Federal Land Manager of the proposal not more than 60 days prior to the hearing and allow an opportunity for the Federal Land Manager to confer with the state and submit written comments and recommendations. If an area is reclassified against the recommendations of the Federal Land Manager, the state shall publish a notice listing the inconsistencies and the reasons for reclassifying the area against the Federal Land Manager's recommendations in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

e. Prior to proposing a reclassification, the state shall confer with the elected leadership of any local general purpose government in the area covered by the proposed reclassification.

2. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class III (except areas proposed to be reclassified by an Indian Governing Body):

a. All of the requirements of Rule 62-204.320(3)(b)1., F.A.C., above, shall be met.

b. The proposal shall be specifically approved by the Governor after consultation with the appropriate committees of the legislature, if it is in session, or with the leadership of the legislature, if it is not in session.

e. Each unit of local general purpose government representing a majority of the residents of the area to be reclassified shall enact or adopt a resolution or other legislation concurring in the reclassification.

d. The reclassification may not cause or contribute to a violation of any state or national ambient air quality standard, or a violation of a maximum allowable increase in any other Class I, Class II, or Class III area.

e. To the extent practicable, any permit application and supporting documentation for a facility subject to Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., which could receive a permit only if the area in question were reclassified as Class III, shall be made available for public inspection prior to the hearing on reclassification.

3. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class I, Class II, or Class III by an Indian Governing Body:

a. All of the requirements of Rule 62-204.320(3)(b)1., F.A.C., and the additional requirements of Rules 62-204.320(3)(b)2.d. and e., F.A.C., shall be met, or equivalent procedures shall be followed. b. Prior to proposing the reclassification, the Indian Governing Body shall consult with the state within which the Indian Reservation is located and any state which borders the Indian Reservation.

(c) The following areas shall not be reclassified as Class III:

1. An area which, as of August 7, 1977, exceeded ten thousand acres in size and was a national monument, a national primitive area, a national preserve, a national recreation area, a national wild and scenic river, a

national wildlife refuge, or a national lakeshore or seashore; or 2. A national park or national wilderness area established after August 7, 1977, which exceeds ten thousand acres in size.

- (d) Any area other than an area referred to in Rule 62-204.320(3)(c)1. or 2., F.A.C., above, or an area designated as Class I under Rule 62-204.360(2)(a)2., F.A.C., may be reclassified as Class III.
- (4) Designation or Redesignation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Areas.
 (a) Designation or redesignation of an area designated under Rule 62-204.360(1), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petition for rulemaking with the Environmental Regulation Commission. The petition shall conform to the requirements of Section 120.54(5), Florida Statutes. The Department may also initiate designation or redesignation procedures.
 - (b) PSD areas shall be designated only for those pollutants for which maximum allowable increases have been established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C.
 - (c) A PSD area for a pollutant shall not include any areas designated nonattainment for the pollutant under Rule 62-204.240(2), F.A.C.
 - (d) A PSD area may not be redesignated if the redesignation would result in the violation of any maximum allowable increase in the area proposed to be redesignated.
 - (e) Procedures for proposing the designation or redesignation of PSD areas are as follows:
 - 1. A public hearing shall be held in accordance with the notice requirements of Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C.
 - 2. At least 30 days notice of the hearing shall be given to Federal Land Managers whose lands may be affected by the proposed designation or redesignation.
 - 3. The petition for rulemaking shall be made available for public inspection at least 30 days prior to the hearing and shall include a description and analysis of the health, environmental, economic, social and energy effects of the proposed designation or redesignation.
- (5) Designation or Redesignation of Air Quality Maintenance Areas (Reserved).

History-New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

			62-204.320
	Date Submitted to EPA	Date Approved by EPA	Federal Register
Original Reg	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.320, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.340 Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas.

- (1) Designation of Areas Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Attainment Areas).

 (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule
 62-204.340(2)(a), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant ozone.

 (b) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule
 62-204.340(2)(b), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under Rule 62-204.340(3)(a),
 F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant PM10.

 (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule
 62-204.340(2)(c), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under Rule 62-204.340(3)(b),
 F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant sulfur dioxide.

 (d) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule
 62-204.340(2)(d), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant carbon monoxide.
 - (e) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule 62-204.340(2)(e), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant nitrogen dioxide.
- (2) Designation of Areas Not Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Nonattainment Areas).
 - (a) Ozone Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved.)
 - (b) PM₁₀ Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (c) Sulfur Dioxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (d) Carbon Monoxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (e) Nitrogen Dioxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (f) Lead Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (g) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the effective date of redesignation in the Florida Administrative Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation.
- (3) Designation of Areas Which Cannot Be Classified as Attainment or Nonattainment (Unclassifiable Areas).
 - (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule 62-204.340(2)(b), F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant PM₁₀.
 - (b) The following areas are designated as unclassifiable for the pollutant sulfur dioxide.
 - 1. Duval County
 - 2. Escambia County
 - 3. Hillsborough County
 - 4. The Southwest corner of Pasco County
 - (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant lead.
- (4) Designation of Air Quality Maintenance Areas.
 - (a) Each of the following areas is designated as an air quality maintenance area for

the air pollutant ozone:

- 1. Orange County.
- 2. Duval County.
- 3. The area consisting of Broward, Dade, and Palm Beach Counties.
- 4. The area consisting of Hillsborough and Pinellas Counties.
- (b) Each of the following areas is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant, particulate matter:
 - 1. That portion of Hillsborough County which falls within the area of the circle having a centerpoint at the intersection of U. S. 41 South and State Road 60 and a radius of 12 kilometers.
 - 2. The downtown Jacksonville area in Duval County located within the following boundary lines: south and then west along the St. Johns River from its confluence with Long Branch Creek, to Main Street; north along Main Street to Eighth Street; east along Eighth Street to Evergreen Avenue; north along Evergreen Avenue to Long Branch Creek; and east along Long Branch Creek to the St. Johns River.
- (c) Effective January 1, 1996, the area encompassed within a radius of five kilometers centered at UTM coordinates: 364.0 kilometers East, 3093.5 kilometers North, zone 17, in Hillsborough County, is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant lead.
- (d) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the effective date of redesignation in the Florida Administrative Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation.

History: New 3-13-96, 10-23-16.

62-204.340

	Date Submitted to EPA	Date Approved by EPA	Federal Register
Original Reg	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346

DEP requests that this rule be removed entirely from the SIP.

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas.

- (1) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant particulate matter:
 (a) All of the state except those areas designated under Rule 62-204.360(1)(b),
 F.A.C., below. The particulate matter minor source baseline date established for this area is December 27, 1977.
 - (b) No other areas of the state.
- (2) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant sulfur dioxide:
 (a) All of the state except those areas designated nonattainment under Rule
 62-204.340(2), F.A.C., and those areas designated under Rule 62-204.360(2)(b),
 F.A.C., below. The sulfur dioxide minor sourse baseline date established for this
 area is December 27, 1977.
 - (b) No other areas of the state.
- (3) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant nitrogen dioxide:
 (a) All of the state except those areas designated under Rule 62-204.360(3)(b),
 F.A.C., below. The nitrogen dioxide minor source baseline date established for this area is March 28, 1988.
 - (b) No other areas of the state.
- (4) All areas of the state shall be classified as Class I, Class II, or Class III.

 (a) Class II Areas. All areas of the state are designated Class II except for those areas specified in Rule 62-204.360(4)(b), F.A.C., below.
 - (b) Class I Areas. The following areas are designated as Class I areas and shall not be reclassified.
 - 1. Everglades National Park.
 - 2. Chassahowitzka National Wilderness Area.
 - 3. St. Marks National Wilderness Area.
 - 4. Bradwell Bay National Wilderness Area.
- (5) Federally designated Class I Areas outside of Florida but within 100 kilometers of the state are as follows:
 - (a) Okefenokee National Wilderness Area.
 - (b) Wolf Island National Wilderness Area.

History: New 3-13-96.

62-204.360

	Date Submitted	Date Approved	Federal
	to EPA	by EPA	Register
Original Reg	04/15/1996	06/16/1999	64 FR 32346

History-New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

DEP requests that this rule be removed entirely from the SIP.

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.360, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions.

- (1) The Department shall hold a public hearing prior to adoption of any proposed revision to the Florida State Implementation Plan (SIP).
 - (a) In addition to the notice required by Section 120.54, F.S., for rulemaking, the Department shall publish notice of the hearing by prominent advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in each air quality control region affected at least 30 days prior to the hearing. The notice shall specify the date, time, and place of the hearing and state that a copy of the proposed SIP revision is available for public inspection in each affected region.
 - (b) The Department shall also furnish a copy of the notice and proposed SIP revision to:
 - 1. The Region IV office of the EPA;
 - 2. Each local air pollution control agency in an affected region; and
 - 3. In the case of an interstate air quality control region, each other state included in whole or in part in the region.
- (2) A record of the public hearing, including a list of witnesses together with the text of each presentation, shall be made available by the Department to the Administrator upon his/her request.
- (3) The Department shall include with each proposed SIP revision submitted to the EPA a certification that the hearing was held in accordance with the notice required by Rule 62-204.400(1)(a), F.A.C.

History: New 11-30-94, Amended 10-06-08, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.400

	Date Submitted to EPA	Date Approved by EPA	Federal Register
Original Reg	11/22/1994	06/16/1999	64 FR 32353

DEP requests that this rule be removed entirely from Florida's SIP.

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

No provisions of Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C., would remain in Florida's SIP.

62-204.500 Conformity.

- (1) General Conformity. The provisions of this rule apply to state review of all federal general conformity determinations submitted to the state pursuant to ·40 CFR Part 51, Subpart W, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204. 800, F.A.C. Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart W, federal agencies are required to make conformity determinations to ensure that certain federal actions are consistent with the State Implementation Plan.
- (2) Transportation Conformity. Pursuant to 40 CFR 93.105, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., the Department has certain consultation and conflict resolution responsibilities in the transportation conformity process. The Department will carry out these responsibilities for transportation conformity pursuant to the interagency memorandum of agreement as revised in 1998, and hereby adopted and incorporated by reference.

History- -New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, 3-23-97, 9-1-98

62-204.500

	Date Submitted to EPA	Date Approved by EPA	Federal Register
Original Reg	08/14/1998	08/11/2003	68 FR 47468

NOTE: Except for the incorporation by reference of 40 CFR 93.104(e) of the Transportation Conformity Rule.

Proposed SIP after Approval of Requested Revision:

62-204.500 Conformity.

- (1) General Conformity. The provisions of this rule apply to state review of all federal general conformity determinations submitted to the state pursuant to 40 CFR Part <u>9351</u>, Subpart <u>BW</u>, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. Pursuant to 40 CFR Part <u>9351</u>, Subpart <u>BW</u>, federal agencies are required to make conformity determinations to ensure that certain federal actions are consistent with the State Implementation Plan.
 - (a) Definitions. The definitions used in reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the definitions in 40 CFR Part 93, §93.152, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (b) Criteria. The criteria for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the criteria in 40 CFR Part 93, §93.158, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (c) Procedures. The procedures for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the procedures in 40 CFR Part 93, §93.159, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (d) Mitigation of Air Quality Impacts.

- 1. A federal general conformity determination submitted to the Department for review must contain, at a minimum, the following before the Department can make a positive finding of conformity in its review.
 - a. Any measures that are intended to mitigate air quality impacts must be identified, and the process for implementation and enforcement of such measures must be described including an implementation schedule containing explicit timelines for implementation.
 - b. Written commitments to take any mitigation measures from all persons or agencies committing to such measures.
- 2. A positive finding of conformity by the Department in any review of a federal general conformity determination is expressly based, in part, on reliance that all written commitments for mitigation measures shall be fulfilled by the timelines set out in such written commitments. Failure to fulfill such mitigation measures by the explicit timelines expressed in the written commitments shall nullify a positive Department review finding of conformity as of midnight of the date of the unfulfilled expressed timeline.
- (2) Transportation Conformity. Pursuant to 40 CFR 93.105, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., the Department has certain consultation and conflict resolution responsibilities in the transportation conformity process. The Department will carry out these responsibilities for transportation conformity pursuant to the interagency memorandum of agreement as revised in 1998, and hereby adopted and incorporated by reference.

History--New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, 3-23-97, 9-1-98, 10-23-16.

62-204.500

	Date Submitted	Date Approved	Federal
	to EPA	by EPA	Register
Original Reg	08/14/1998	08/11/2003	68 FR 47468

NOTE: Except for the incorporation by reference of 40 CFR 93.104(e) of the Transportation Conformity Rule.

Legal Authority

Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), entitled "Environmental Control," provides the legal framework for most of the activities of the air resource management program within the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). Except as provided at sections 403.8055 and 403.201, F.S., for fast-track rulemaking and the granting of variances under Chapter 403, F.S., respectively, Chapter 120, F.S., Florida's "Administrative Procedure Act," sets forth the procedures DEP must follow for rulemaking, variances, and public meetings. The most recent version of the Florida Statutes can be found online at http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes.

The principal sections of Chapter 403, F.S., that grant DEP authority to operate its air program are listed below. Authority to develop and update Florida's State Implementation Plan (SIP) and 111(d) Designated Facilities Plan is expressly provided by subsection 403.061(35), F.S., which provides that the department shall have the power and the duty to control and prohibit pollution of air and water in accordance with the law and rules adopted and promulgated by it and, for this purpose, to "exercise the duties, powers, and responsibilities required of the state under the federal Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. ss. 7401 et seq."

403.031	Definitions, including the definition of "regulated air pollutant" (403.031(19)).
403.061	Authority to: promulgate plans to provide for air quality control and pollution abatement (403.061(1)); adopt rules for the control of air pollution in the state (403.061(7)); take enforcement action against violators of air pollution laws, rules and permits (403.061(8)); establish and administer an air pollution control program (403.061(9)); set ambient air quality standards (403.061(11)); monitor air quality (403.061(12)); require reports from air pollutant emission sources (403.061(13)); require permits for construction, operation, and modification of air pollutant emission sources (403.061(14)); and exercise the duties, powers, and responsibilities required of the state under the federal Clean Air Act (403.061(35)).
<u>403.087</u>	Authority to issue, deny, modify, and revoke permits.
403.0872	Authority to establish an air operating permit program as required by Title V of the Clean Air Amendments of 1990.
403.0877	Authority to require engineering certification of permit applications.
<u>403.121</u>	Authority to seek judicial and administrative remedies for violations.
<u>403.131</u>	Authority to seek injunctive relief for violations.
<u>403.141</u>	Authority to find civil liability for violations.
<u>403.161</u>	Authority to assess civil and criminal penalties for violations.
<u>403.182</u>	Authority for local pollution control programs.
403.201	Authority to grant variances.
403.8052	Authority to establish a Small Business Assistance Program for small-business

sources of air pollutant emissions.

403.8055	Authority to adopt U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) standards by reference through a fast-track process.
403.814	Authority to allow use of general permits (permits-by-rule) for minor sources.

Other statutory authorities, outside of Chapter 403, F.S., for Florida's air program are as follows:

- Requirement that public officials disclose potential conflicts of interest.

 Requirement for disclosure of financial interests by public officials.

 Authority of agency head to issue an emergency order in response to an immediate threat to public health, safety, or welfare.

 Authority to prohibit the sale and operation of motor vehicles whose emission control systems have been tampered with, and to prohibit the operation of motor vehicles that emit excessive smoke.
- Authority to establish Air Pollution Control Trust Fund and use \$1 fee on every motor vehicle license registration sold in the state for air pollution control purposes, including support of approved local air pollution control programs.
- Authority to establish a fee for asbestos removal projects.

Current and historical versions of Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) rule sections and chapters back to January 1, 2006, may be accessed from the Florida Department of State (DOS) website https://www.flrules.org. The DOS website also provides access to materials adopted by reference since January 1, 2011. DEP rule chapters containing State Implementation Plan (SIP) or 111(d) State Plan provisions are as follows:

<u>62-204</u>	Air Pollution Control – General Provisions
<u>62-210</u>	Stationary Sources – General Requirements
<u>62-212</u>	Stationary Sources – Preconstruction Review
<u>62-252</u>	Gasoline Vapor Control
<u>62-256</u>	Open Burning
<u>62-296</u>	Stationary Sources – Emission Standards
<u>62-297</u>	Stationary Sources – Emissions Monitoring

Other air-related DEP rule chapters—not part of the SIP or 111(d) State Plan—include:

<u>62-213</u>	Operation Permits for Major Sources of Air Pollution (Title V)
<u>62-214</u>	Requirements for Sources Subject to the Federal Acid Rain Program
<u>62-243</u>	Tampering with Motor Vehicle Air Pollution Control Equipment
62-257	Ashestos Program

State Administrative Materials

Certification Package for Rule Repeals effective February 16, 2012

CERTIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE I hereby certify: [X] (1) That all statutory rulemaking requirements of Chapter 120, F.S., and all rulemaking requirements of the Department of State have been complied with; and [X] (2) That there is no administrative determination under Section 120.56(2), F.S., pending on any rule covered by this certification; and [X] (3) All rules covered by this certification are filed within the prescribed time limitations of Section 120.54(3)(e), F.S. They are filed not less than 28 days after the notice required by Section 120.54(3)(a), F.S.; and [X] (a) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice; or [] (b) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not more than 60 days after the administrative law judge files the final order with the clerk or until 60 days after subsequent judicial review is complete; or [] (c) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 21 days nor more than 45 days from the date of publication of the notice of change; or [] (d) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 14 nor more than 45 days after the adjournment of the final public hearing on the rule; or [] (e) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date of receipt of all material authorized to be submitted at the hearing; or [] (f) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date the transcript was received by this agency; or [] (g) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice, not including days the adoption of the rule was postponed following notification from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee that an objection to the rule was being considered; or [] (h) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a good faith written proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative to a proposed rule is submitted which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the law being implemented; or [] (i) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a regulatory alternative is offered by the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Committee.

Attached are the original and two copies of each rule covered by this certification. The rules are hereby adopted by the undersigned agency by and upon their filing with the Department of State.

Rule No(s).	62-204.100	62-204.320
	62-204.200	62-204.360
	62-204.220	62-204.400

Under the provision of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the rules take effect 20 days from the date filed with the Department of State or a later date as set out below:

Effective: _____ (month) (day) (year)

Chief Deputy General Cub

Number of Pages Certified

SUMMARY OF RULE

Re: Rules 62-204.100, 62-204.200, 62-204.220, 62-204.320, 62-204.360, 62-204.400, F.A.C.

Notice of Proposed Rule: November 23, 2011

OGC No.: 11-1084

Project: Rule Repeal, NAAQS and Nonattainment Designations

The proposed repeals updates Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., to remove obsolete provisions related to ambient air quality standards. The proposed changes will remove excess or redundant language to better align with Federal rule language.

FILEU
2012 JAN 27 PM 3: 38
DEPARTMENT OF STATE

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES JUSTIFYING PROPOSED RULE

Re: Rules 62-204.100, 62-204.200, 62-204.220, 62-204.320, 62-204.360, 62-204.400, F.A.C.

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking: November 23, 2011

OGC No.: 11-1084

Project: Rule Repeal, NAAQS and Nonattainment Designations

Introduction

The purpose and effect of the proposed rule amendments (OGC 11-1084) is to eliminate rule sections that are duplicative and unnecessary.

Need for Rule Change

Revisions are needed to Rules 62-204.220, 62-204.320, and 62-204.360, F.A.C., to remove duplicative and unnecessary provisions related to ambient air quality protection and area designations. The definitions in 62-204.200 are either currently duplicated in Rule 62-210.200, or are being added to Rule 62-210.200 in the pending "PM2.5 and Nonattainment New Source Review" rulemaking project, thereby rendering this rule unnecessary and in need of repeal. The language in Rule 62-210.100 also in need of removal because it is purely explanatory, not mandated by statute, and unnecessary.

Summary of Rule Amendments

The specific rule amendments are as follows:

- Repeal of Rule 204.100 Purpose and Scope to remove unnecessary language.
- Repeal of Rule 204.200 Definitions to remove definitions that are (or are to be) duplicated in Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C.

Detailed Statement of Facts and Circumstances - Chapter 62-204, F.A.C.

ALL EN SOR

- Repeal of Rule 204.220 Ambient Air Quality Protection to remove duplicative and unnecessary language. This section is proposed to be repealed. The substance of this section is either already included in Rule 62-212.300, F.A.C., or restated in federal procedures that the department must follow whether or not they are included in this rule. Such federal procedures are adopted by reference in 62-204.800, F.A.C. at 62-204.800(6) and 62-204.800(2), F.A.C.
- Repeal of Rule 204.320 Procedures for Designation and Resignation of Areas to remove unnecessary language. This section is proposed to be repealed as the procedures set forth in this section are not needed in a DEP rule. The procedures are either rendered unnecessary by the other proposed changes to this rule chapter, or they restate federal procedures that the department must follow whether or not they are included in this rule.
- Repeal of Rule 204.360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas to remove language that will be moved to Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C., via the pending "PM2.5 and Nonattainment New Source Review" rulemaking project that will precede these repeals.
- Repeal of 204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions to remove unnecessary language. This section is proposed to be repealed as the procedures set forth in this section are not needed in a DEP rule. The procedures are either rendered unnecessary by the other proposed changes to this rule chapter, or they restate federal procedures that the department must follow whether or not they are included in this rule.

SUMMARY OF THE HEARING

Re: Rules 62-204.100, 62-204.200, 62-204.220, 62-204.320, 62-204.360, 62-204.400, F.A.C.

Notice of Proposed Rule: November 23, 2011

OGC No.: 11-1084

Project: Rule Repeal, NAAQS and Nonattainment Designations

The Notice of Proposed Rule was published November 23, 2011, in the Florida Administrative Weekly (F.A.W.).

The notice stated that if requested within 21 days of the date of the notice, a rule adoption hearing would have been held by the Department of Environmental Protection. No timely request for hearing was received by the Department, and no hearing was held.

TILED

2012 JAN 27 PM 3: 38

DEPARTINGE OF STATE

62-204.100 Purpose and Scope.	
Rulemaking Specific-Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061	1, 403.8055 FS. History-New
11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, Repealed	,
62-204.200 Definitions.	•
Rulemaking Specific-Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.80	055 FS. History-New 11-30-
94, Amended 3-13-96, 2-12-06, 10-6-08, Repealed	
62-204.220 Ambient Air Quality Protection.	
Rulemaking Specific-Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.08	7 FS. History-New 3-13-96,
Repealed	
62-204.320 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas.	
<u>Rulemaking Specifie-Authority</u> 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 Repealed	7 FS. History-New 3-13-96
repealed	
62-204,360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas.	
Rulemaking Specific-Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087	7 FS. History-New 3-13-96,
Repealed	
62 204 400 Public Marine and Harriso Parents and Control of the Parents and	
62-204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revision	ons.
Rulemaking Specific-Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.80	055 FS. History-New 11-30-
94, Amended 10-6-08, Repealed	
	7.6
•	EPAH LLAH
	AN 2
	FILED 2012 JAN 27 PM 3: 38 DEPARTMENT OF STATE ALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
	E ST C
	38 IDA

The following rules are hereby repealed:

Rule 62-204.100, F.A.C., Purpose and Scope

Rule 62-204.200, F.A.C., Definitions

Rule 62-204.220, F.A.C., Ambient Air Quality Protection

HICARD AND STATE OF THE STATE O Rule 62-204.320, F.A.C., Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas

Rule 62-204.360, F.A.C., Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas

Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C., Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State

Implementation Plan Revisions

V. 5, p. 175

AIR POLLETION CONTROL - GENERAL PROVISIONS

CHAPTER 61-284
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL - GENERAL

	PROVINIONS
62-204.100	Pageose and Scope.
62-204-200	Definitions:
65-204,220	Ambien Air Quality Projection.
62-204-240	Ambient Air Quality Standards,
62-204-260	Provention of Significant Deterioration Incomests.
62-204,300	Approved State Implementation Plan (Remoded)
62-204.339	Procedures for Designation ass Redesignation of Arras
62-214.349	Designation of Attainment, Neutrinosco and Maintenance Areas.
62-204.360	Designation of Prevention of Significan Description Areas.
62-284.489	Public Notice and Hearing Requirements to State Implementation Plan Revisions.
62-204.500	Conformity.
62-204,600	Transportation Conferency, (Repealed)
675,7464,8865	Federal Regulations Adorsed by Reference.

used in this chapter, unless content size, have the following meanings: "Agend Emissions" - The around rate

politizant that may be allowed to called in the ambient ale specific period of time.

"National Ambient Alt Quality Scandard" means as a standard qualitation by EPA and specified at 40 C.F.R.

(b) "Primary Standard" means an ambient stands established to protect public health.

(c) "Secondary Standard" means an ambient stand established to protect the public welfure including the protection of unimal and plant life, property, visibility usnospheric clarity, and the oxjoyment of life and property.

(d) "State Ambient Air Quality Standard" magns an ambiens standard established or adopted by the Department.

- (7) "Baseline Area" The area (and every pur theroof) designated as a prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) area under Rule 62-204.360, F.A.C., in which the facility or major modification establishing the minor soughe baseline date would construct or in which the emissions of the facility (or the significant not increase in emissions/for a major modification) would have a producted air funlity impact equal to or greater than one microgram per cubic meter (annual overage) of the pollutant for which the minor source baseline date is established. For purposes of this definition, "major modification" has the meaning given at Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C.
- (8) "Baseline Concentration" The ambient concentration level that exists in the haseline area at the time of the applicable minor source baseline date. A baseline concentration is determined for each/pollutant for which a minor source baseline date is established and for each averaging time for which a muximum allowable increase is exphished in Rule 62-204.260; F.A.C.

(a) The buscline concentration shall include the concentration attributable tec

 The actual emissions representative of sources in existence on the applicable minor source baseline date, except as provided at paragraph 62-204.200(8)(b). F.A.C.; and

2. The federally enforces the allowable emissions of major stationary sources on which construction commenced on or before the major source baseline date but which were not in operation by the applicable minor source baseline date

(b) The baseline concentration shall not include the concentration attributable to the following emissions, rather. such emissions shall affect the amount of any applicable maximum allowable increase remaining available:

 The actual emissions from any major stationary source on which construction commenced after the major source. baseline date; and

2. Any increase or decrease in the actual emissions of facilities occurring after the applicable minor source baseline

(c) For purposes of this definition, "construction" means any physical change or change in the method of operation (including (phrication, erection, installation, demolition, shutdown of modification of an emissions unit) that would /a change in emissions, and result in n" has the meaning given at Rule 62-210.200, edestruction F.A.C., playided, however, that in the case of demolition or shutdown of an emissions unit, "commence construction" means that the owner or operator has permanently coased all operations of the unit.

Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (b) (d)

The change in concentration attributable to any rease in the actual emissions of a facility on which the Department has relied in domonstrating attainment, defining resonable further progress, or issuing a permit under the provisions of Rule 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510 (transferred), 17-2:650 (transferred), 62-212:500, 62-296:500 through 62-296:570, or 62-296:700 through 62-296:712, F.A.C., shall be included in the baseline concentration and not be considered in determining the amount of any maximum allowable inca remaining available; and

2. Concentrations of particulate matter attributable increase in emissions from construction or other temporary emission-related activities of new or modified facilities shall be excluded in determining compliance with any allowable increase.

(9) "Cause or Contribute" - With respect to a via ambient air quality standard, to have a significant inspect on the ambient air concentration of a pullutant at any locality that does not or would not meet the applicable standard.

(10) "Clean Air Act (CAA)" or "Act" - The Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.)

(11) "Department" - The State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection.

(12) "Emission" - The discharge of release into the atmosphere of one or more air pollutants.

(13) "Emission Limiting Standard" or Finitation Standard" "Emission Limitation" or "Performance Standard" - Any restriction established in or pursuant to a regulation adopted by the Department which limits the quantity, rate, concentration or opacity of any pollutant released, alloyed to escape or emitted, whether insentionally or uninternionally, into the samosphere, including any restriction which prescribes equipment, sets fuel specifications, or prescribes operation or traintenance procedures for an emissions unit to assure emission reduction or control.

(14) "Emissions Unit" - Any fact or activity of a facility that crits or has the potential to omit any air pollutant.

(15) "Favironmental Protection Agency" or "EPA" - The United States Environmental Protection Agency. (16) "Facility" - All of the emissions units which are located on one or more contiguous or adjacem properties and which are under the control of the same person (or persons under common

(17) "Federal Land Manager" -- With respect to any lands in the United States, the Secretary of the department with authority over such lands.

(18) "Indian Governing Body" - The governing body of any tribe; band, or group of Indians subject to the jurisdiction of the United States and recognized by the United States as presenting power of self-government.

(19) "Indian Reservation" - Any federally recognized reservation established by Treaty, Agreement, Executive Order.

or Act of Congress.
(20) "Major Source Baseline Date" - Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 51.166(b)(14)6), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule

62-204-800, A.C.;
(a) In the case of particulate matter and sulfar dioxide, January 6, 975; and

(b) In the case of nitrogen dioxide, February 8, 1988

(21) "Marginal Nonattainment Area for Oxone" - The lowest category of five classifications of nonattainment for the air pollutars ozone as defined in the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. Part 7511)

"Minor Source Baseline Date" - Purguant to 40 C.F.R. § 166(b)(14)(ii), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 604.800, F.A.C., the minor source baseline date for each pollutant for which inscrimum allowable increases have been clublished under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., is the earliest date ther August 7, 1977, for particulate matter and sulfur dioxide.

and February 8, 1988, for nitrogen dioxide, that a facility or modification subject to preconstruction review under 40 C.F.R. § 52.21, Rule 17-2 500, F.A.C. (transferred), or Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., submits a complete application for permit under such regulations provided that:

(a) On the date the complete application is filed, the area in which the facility or modification would be constructed is designated as attainment or unclassifiable for the applicable pollutant under 42 U.S.C. Section 7407(d)(1) of the Clean Air Act (if the application is filed under 40 C.F.R. \$ 52.21), or as a PSD area under Rule 17-2.450 (transferred), 62-275.700 (sepealed) or 62-204.360, F.A.C., (if the application is filed under Rule 17-2.500 (magderned) or 62-212.400, F.A.C.); and

(b) In the case of a facility, the emissions of the applicable pollutant would be equal to or greater than the significant emissions rate as defined at Rule 62-210.200 F.A.C., or, in the case of modification, there would be a significant net emissions increase of the pollutant.

(23) "Moderate Nonattainment Area tor Ozone" - The second-lowest category of five dassifications of norutainment for the air pollutant conge as defined in the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. Part 7511).

(24) "Modification" - Any physical/change in, change in the method of operation of, or addition to a facility which would result in an increase in the actual emissions of any sir pollutant subject to regulation under the Act, including any not previously emitted, from any emissions unit or facility.

(a) A physical change or change in the method of

operation shall not include:

Routine maintanance, spair, or reglacement of component parts of an emission unit; or
 A change in ownership again emissions unit or facility.

a. A crorge in ownership often emissions unit or facility.
(b) For any pottstant that is specifically regulated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act, a change in the method of operation shall not include an increase in the hours of operation or in the production rate, unless such change would be prohibited under any federally enforceable posmit condition which was established after January 6, 1975.

condition which was conditioned after January 6, 1975.

(c) For any pollutary that is not specifically regulated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act, a change in the method of operation shall not pleased on increase in the hours of operation or in the production rate, unless such change would exceed any restriction on hours of operation or production rate included in any applicable Department air operations or air operation pegnit.

(25) "Nonattalament Area" - Any area not meeting arbiest air quality standards and designated as a tonattainment area under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. Such as tonataisment area under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. Such as area may be ensignated as a perticulare, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide, carbon motoxide, lead or ozone nonataisment area, depending on which ambient standard has been fiolated. An area may be designated as nonattainment for more than one air pollutaint. Oxone nonattainment areas may be transitional, marginal, moderate, serious, severe, or extreme as classified in Rule 62-304.340, F.A.C.

(26) Particulate Matter."

(a) With respect to concentrations in the atmosphere, puriciplate matter means any airborne finely divided solid or liquid material.

(#) With respect to emissions, particulate matter means all divided solid or liquid material, other than shined water, emitted to the atmosphere as measured applicable reference methods, or an equivalent or

alternative method, specified in 40 C.F.R. Part 60. Appendix adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.850. FAC

(27) "PM-".

(a) With respect to concentrations in the aunosphere PMin means particulate matter with an acrodynamic diameter loss than or equal to a nominal 10 micrometers as measured by a reference method based on 40 C.F.R. Part 50, Appendix J, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 47-204.800, F.A.C., and designated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 53 or by an equivalent method designated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 53, adopted and incorporated by refigence in Rule 62-204.R00, F.A.C.

(b) With respect to emissions, PM_{in} meany finely divided solid or liquid material, with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal 10 micrometers emitted to the atmosphere as measured by an applicable reference method or by an equivalent or alternative method specified in 40 C.F.R. Part 51. Appendix M, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

(28) "Reflexignation of an Area" - A change in the designation or a redefinition of the boundaries of an area for any of the designations listed under Rule \$2-204.340 or 62-204.360. FAC.

(29) "Significant Impact" - A impact of emissions on ambient air quality in excess of any of the following pollutant-specific concentration values:

(a) Sulfur Dioxide.

I. Maximum three-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year - 25.0 micrograms per cubic meter.

 Maximum 24-hour consentration not to be exceeded more than once per year - 1.0 migrogram per cubic meter for Class 1 areas: 5.0 micrograms per gubic meter for all other areas.

Annual unithmetic mean - 1.0 microgram per cubic motor.

(b) PM_{th} 1. Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year - 1,0 microgram per cubic meter for Class 1 areas: 5.0 micrograms per cubic meter for all other areas.

Annual arithmeste mean – 1.0 microgram per cubic meter.
(c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmesic mean – 1.0 microgram per cubic meter.

(d) Carbon Monoxide.

Maximum enc-hour concentration not to be exceeded more in once for year - 2.0 milligrams per cubic meter.

than once for year - 2.0 milligrams per cueso motor.

2. Maximum eight-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year = 0.5 milligram per cubic meter.
(c) Lead Maximum quarterly arithmetic

Maximum quarterly arithmetic mean - 0.03

microgram for cubic meter.

\$12-06, 10-6-0A

"State Implementation Plan (SIP)" or "Implementation he EFA approved plan which Section 110 of the Clean Air Act requires a state to submit to the Administrator. The State entation Plan for the State of Florida, as approved by the Environmental Protection Agency, is identified in 40 F. Part 52, Subpart K, adopted and incorporated by once in Rule 62-204.800, P.A.C. tific Authority 103.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 10.061, 403.8055 FS. Husary-New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96.

62-204.220 Ambient Air Quality Protection.

(1) Except as provided in Rule 62-212,500. Proconstruction Review for Nonartalamons steals, or in the Reasonably Available Control Technology rules of Chapter 62-296, F.A.C., the Department shall not issue an air permit authorizing a person to bests, erect, construct, or implant any new emissions unit; water, modify, or rebaild any existing emissions unit, or by any

- (c) Nitrogen Diexide. Annual urithmetic mean 2/ micrograms per cubic meter.
 - (2) Class II Area Increments.
 - (a) Particulate Matter.
- PM_m, Annual arithmetic mean 17 microcans per cubic meter.
- PM_m. Twenty-four-hour maximum 30 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (b) Sulfer Diexide.
- Annual urithmetic mean 20 micrograms per cubic meter.
- Twenty-Sour-hour muximum 91 dicrograms per cubic meter.
- Three-hour maximum 512 micrograms per cubic moter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Assetal arithmetic mean 25 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (3) Class III Ana Increingus.
- (a) Particulate Matter.
- PM_p. Annual arithmetic mean 34 micrograms per cubic meter.
- PM_m 26-hour maximum 60 micrograms per cubic neter.
 - (b) Sulfur Dioxide.
- Annuel arithmetic mean 40 micrograms per cubic meter.
- Twenty-four-hour maximum 182 micrograms per cubic motor
- Thee-boor maximum 700 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide, Annual arithmetic mean 50 micrograms per ouble meter.
- Splight Authority 403.061 FS, Leve Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 43.067 FS, History-New 3-13-96, Amended 2-17-06.

62-204.520 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas. (1) General.

(a) Under subsections 62-204-340(1) through (3), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as attainment, normalization, or unclassifiable with respect to such air pollutant for which an ambient air quality shadard is established under Rule 62-204-240, F.A.C. The designation of each such area determines which emission limiting standards, new and modified facility recycle requirements, and other air pollution control measures shall apply to sources and activities which emit the pollutant or the precursor of the pollutant for which the area is designated. Following the redesignation of an area as normalizationers, a revision to the State Implementation Plan (SIP) may be required to establish the existion limiting Standards and other air pollution creased pressures appropriate for the area.

(b) Under subsection 62-204-360(1), F.A.C., all areas of

(b) Under subsection 62-204-360(1), F.A.C., all areas of the state that are npt designated as nonattainment with respect to a pollusion for which a maximum allowable increase is defined in Rule 62-204-260, F.A.C., shall be designated as June or more prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) areas with respect to each such pollusion. The designation of a PSD area determines the area for which a PSD hydrine date shall be established.

(c) Inder subsections 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as Class I, Class II, or Class III. For an area that is designated as a PSD area, the designation of the area as Class I, II or III determines which set of maximum allowable increases in particulate matter, sulfudioxide, and nitrogen dioxide concentrations established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., shall apply in the area after a PSD baseline date is established.

(d) Under subsection 62-204.340(4), F.A.C., certain used of the state shall be designated as air quality maintenance areas. Areas that have been redesignated from nonattainment to attainment or unclassifiable may be designated as air quality maintenance areas with the effect that all crinicion limiting standards and permit limitations that were established pursuant to Roles 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510 (transferred), 17-2.650 (transferred), 62-212.900. Chapter 62-252, and the/Reasonably Available Control Technology rules in Chapter 62-296, F.A.C., or effectively as a result of the SIP or nonattainment corrective plan, and all other air pollution control measures that were required under the SIP or nonattainment corrective plan, shall romain in effect in such areas.

(2) Roderignation of Nenattairuness. Attainment, and Unclassifiable Areas (Reserved).

(3) Reclassification of Class I, Class III and Class III Areas.
(a) Reclassification of an area classified under subsection 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petition for rulemaking with the Environmental Bigulation Commission showing sufficient justification for such action provided that lands within the exterior boundaries of Indian Reservations may be reclassified only by the appropriate Indian Governing Body. This petition shall conform to the requirements of Section 120.54(5), F.S. The Department may also initiate reclassification procedures. All reclassifications shall be submitted as revisions.

to the State Implementation Plan.

(b) Decisions regarding whether an area should be reclassified shall be based on the following criteria.

 For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class I or Class II:

 A public hearing shall be held in accordance with the notice requirements of Rule 62-204.400. F.A.C.

b. At least 30 days notice of the proposed reclassification shall be given to other states, Indian Governing Bodies, and Federal Land Managers whose lands may be affected by the proposal.

c. A description and analysis of the health, environmental, aconomic, social, and energy effects of the proposed reclassification shall be prepared and made available for public inspection at least 10 days prior to the hearing. The notice shall state the availability of the required analysis.

d. If the recludational includes any Federal lands, the state shall notify the Federal Land Manager of the proposal not more than 60 days prior to the hearing and allow an opportunity for the Federal Land Manager to confer with the state and submit written comments and recommendations. If an area is reclassified/against the recommendations of the Federal Land Manager, the state shall publish a notice listing the inconsistonicies and the reasons for reclassifying the area against the Federal Land Manager's recommendations in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

c. Prior to proposing a reclassification, the state shall confer with the elected leadurship of any local general purpose government in the area covered by the proposed reclassification. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified at Class III

(except areas proposed to be reclassified by an Indian Governing Body): a. All of the requirements of subparagraph 62-204-320(3)(b)1., F.A.C., above, shall be met. The proposal shall be specifically approved by the Governor after consultation with the appropriate committees of the legislature, if it is in session, or with the leadership of the legislature, if it is not in sussion,

c. Each unit of local general purpose govern representing a majority of the residents of the area, other reclassified shall enact or adopt a resolution of legislation concurring in the reclassification.

d. The reclassification may not cause or contribute to a violation of any state or national ambient air quality-standard, or a violation of a maximum allowable increase is any other

Class I, Class II, or Class III area.

- e. To the extent practicable, any permit application and supporting documentation for a facility subject to Rule 62-212,400, F.A.C., which could receive a permit only if the area in question woru reclassified as Class IIII shall be made available for public inspection prior to the hearing on reclassification.
- For areas which are proposed to be rec
- Class II, or Class III by an Indian Governing Body:
 All of the requirements of subparagraph 62-204.320(3)(h)1., F.A.C., and the additional requirements of sub-subparagraphs 62-204.320(3)(t)2.d. and e., F.A.C.,
- b. Prior to proposing the rectagolitation, the Indian Geverning Body shall consult with the state within which the Indian Reservation is located and any state which borders the Indian Reservation.

(c) The following areas shall not be reclassified as Class 183

- (c) The following areas shall not be reclassified as Crass IIII:

 1. An area which, as of Angust 7, 1977, exceeded on thousand across in size and fea a national manament, a national primitive area, a fational proserve, a national recreation area, a national fed and scenic river, a national wildlife refuge, or a national flakeshore or seashore; or

 2. A national park or refund wildlemess such established after Angust 7, 1977, which occored to thousand across in size.

 (d) Any area other than an area referred to in subparagraph (2-204 320(3)(c)). or /2. F.A.C., above, or a area designated as Class I unifer subparagraph 62-204.360(2)(a)2. F.A.C. may be reclassified as Class III.

 (d) Designation for Rodesignation of Pervention of Significant Description (PSD) Areas.

 (a) Designation for redesignation of an area designated under subsoction (\$\frac{1}{2}\$-204.360(1), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petities for releasignation of an area designated under subsoction (\$\frac{1}{2}\$-204.360(1), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petities for releasignation of an area designation of requirements of section 120.54(5), F.A.C. may be proposed by filing a petities for releasing with the Environmental Regulation Complision. The petition shall conform to the requirements of section 120.54(5), F.S. The Department may also initiate designation or redesignation procedures.

 (b) PSD organ shall be designated only for those pollutants for which fraccinam allowable increases have been established index Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C.

 (c) A PSD area for a pollutant shall not include any areas designated constant quantities for the pollutant under subsection
- (c) A PSD area for a pollutant shall not include any areas designated nonastainment for the pollutant under subsection 62-204.240(2), F.A.C.
- (d) A PSD area may not be redesignated if the redesignation would result in the violation of any maximum. We increase in the area proposed to be redesignated.

(e) Procedures for proposing the designation or

rederignation of PSD areas are as follows:

\$\begin{align*} \tilde{L} \tilde

2. At least 30 days notice of the hearing shall be given to Hederal Land Managers whose lands may be affected by the proposed designation or redesignation.

- 3. The petition for referrating shall be made available for public inspection at least 30 days prior to the basely and shall include a description and analysis of the beart, environmental. economic, social and energy effects of the proposed designation or redesignation.
- (5) Designation or Badesignation of Air Quality Maintenance Aleas (Reserved): Specific dustring 405,061 FS, Law Implemented 463,021, 463,631, 401,047, 403,047 FS, Microsy-Niew 3-13-84.

62-204.340 Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, and Maintenance Areas.

(1) Designation of Areas Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Attainment Areas).

(a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonatainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(a). F.A.C., is

designated as attainment for the air pollutant coone.

(b) All of the state except those areas designated as nonutainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(h), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under paragraph 63-204.340(5)(a), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant PM19-

(c) All of the state except those areas designated at nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(c), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under paragraph 62-204.140(3)(b). F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant suffur dioxide.

(d) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(d), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant earbon menoxide.

(c) All of the state except those areas designated as negarizationest under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(c). F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant nitrogen disords.

(2) Designation of Areas Not Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Nonattainment Areas).

(a) Ozone Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).

(b) PM₂₀ Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).

(c) Sulfur Dioxide Nocustainment Areas. (Reserved).

(d) Carbon Monoxido Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved). (c) Nitrogen Dinxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).

(f) Lead nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).

- (g) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the offective date of redesignation in the Florido Administrative Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation.
- (3) Designation of Areas Which Cannot Be Classified as Attainment or Nonattainment (Unclassifiable Areas).
- (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonalitainment under paragraph 62-204340(2)(b). F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant PM10
- (b) The following areas are designated as unclassifiable for the pollutant sulfur dioxide.

 1. Duval County.
- Escambia County.
- 3. Hillsborough County
- The Southwest corner of Pasco County.
- (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonstrainment under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant lead.

(4) Designation of Air Quality Maintenance Areas.

- (a) Each of the following areas is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant ozone:
 - 1. Orange County.
 - Duval County.

- 3. The area consisting of Broward, Dude, and Palm Boach Counties.
- 4. The area consisting of Hillsborough and Pinellas Counties. (b) Each of the following areas is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant, particulate matter:

1. That portion of Hillsborough County which falls within the area of the circle having a contempolor at the intersection of U.S. 41 South and State Road 60 and a radius of 12 kilometers.

2. The downtown Jacksonville area in Duval County located within the following boundary lines: south and then west along the St. Johns River from its confluence with Long Branch Creek, to Main Street; north along Main Street to Eighth Street: east along Eighth Street to Evergreen Avenue; north along Evergreen Avenue to Long Branch Creek; and east along Long Branch Creek to the St. Johns River.

ctive January 1, 1996, the area encompassed within a radius of five killometers contared at UTM coordinates: 364.0 kilometers East, 3,093.5 kilometers North, zone 17, in Hillsborough County, is designated as an air quality

maintenance area for the air pollutant lead.

(d) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the effective date of redesignation in the Florida Administrative Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county

affected by the redesignation. Specific Authority 401.061 F3. Law Implemented 403.021, 483.031. 403.561, 403.087 FS. History-New 3-13-96.

62-204.360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas.

(1) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for

air pollutant particulate matter:

(a) All of the state except those areas designated paragraph 62-204.360(1)(b), F.A.C., below. The particulate matter minor source haseline date established for sits area is December 27, 1977.

(b) No other areas of the state.

(2) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant sulfur director:

(a) All of the state except those areas designated nonattainment under subsection 62-204,640(2), F.A.C those areas designated under paragraph 62-204.360(2)(b). F.A.C., below. The softer dioxide migror source baseline date established for this area is December 27, 1977.

(b) No other areas of the state.

(3) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the

air pollutant nitrogen dioxide:

(a) All of the state except those areas designated under paragraph 62-204.360(3)0h, F.A.C., below. The nitrogen dioxide minor source baseline date established for this area is March 28, 1988.

(b) No other areas of the state.

(4) All areas of the state shall be classified as Class I, Class II, or Class III.

(a) Class II Ages. All areas of the state are designated Class II except for three areas specified in paragraph 62-204.360(4)(b), F.A.C., below.

(b) Class I Areas. The following areas are designated as Class I areas and shall not be reclassified.

 Evyfiglades National Park.

Ososahowitaka National Wilderness Area.
 St. Marks National Wilderness Area.

Bradwell Bay National Wilderness Area.

(5) Federally designated Class I Areas outside of Florida but within 100 kilometers of the state are as follows:

(a) Okofenokoe National Wildgraum 1905. (b) Wolf Island National Wilderness Area. ec/fc_dument@ 483.061 FS_Law Implemented 493.021, 493.031. 403.061, 403.087 FS. Hunory-New 3-13-96.

62-204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions. The Department shall comply with the public notice and hearing resettements of 49 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpan F. adequated ind incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.850, P.A.C., prior to submission of any proposed revision to the Florido State Implementation Plan (SIP) to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Actionity 402.051, 403.8055 FS. Law Implem control 403 037 Specific Additionity 402.051, 403.8053 FS. Law Implemented 413. 495.761, 403.1635 FS. History-New 11-30-94, Amended 10-5-08.

62-204.500 Conformity.
(1) General Conformity. The provisions of this rule apply to state review of all federal general conformity determinations submitted to the state pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpart W. adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204-800, F.A.C. Parsuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpart W, federal agencies are required to make conformity determinations to ensure that certain federal actions are consistent with the State Implementation Plan.

(a) Definitions. In addition to the definitions in Rule 62-204-200, F.A.C., the definitions used in reviewing federal eneral conformity determinations shall be the definitions in 40

C.F.R. § 51.852.

(b) Criteria. The criteria for reviewing federal general control of the criteria in 40 C.F.R. § 51.858.

(c) Procedures. The procedures for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the procedures in 40 C.F.R.

(d) Mitigation of Air Quality Impacts.

1. A federal general conformity determination submitted to the Department for review must contain, at a minimum, the following before the Department can make a positive finding of conformity in its review.

a. Any measures that are intended to mitigate air quality impacts must be identified, and the pricess for implementation and enforcement of such measures must be described including an implementation schedule containing explicit timelines for implementation.

b. Written commitments to take any mitigation measures from all persons or agencies committing to such measures.

2. A positive finding of conformity by the Department in any review of a federal general conformity determination is expressly based, in part, on reliance that all written commitments for mitigation measures shall be fulfilled by the timelines set out in such written commitments. Failure to fulfill such mitigation measures by the explicit timelines expressed in the written commitments shall rullify a positive Department review finding of conformity as of midnight of the date of the unfulfilled expressed timeline.

(2) Transportation Conformity. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 93.105, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., the Department has certain consultation. and conflict resolution responsibilities in the transportation conformity process. The Department will carry out these responsibilities for transportation conformity pursuant to the interagency memorandum of agreement as revised in 1998 and hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. Specific Authority 493.061 FS. Law Implemented 493.031, 493.061 FS. Hustery-New 11-39-94. Amended 3-13-96, 3-23-97, 9-1-98.

6

CERTIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify:

- [X] (1) That all statutory rulemaking requirements of Chapter 120, F.S., and all rulemaking requirements of the Department of State have been complied with; and
- [X] (2) That there is no administrative determination under Section 120,56(2), F.S., pending on any rule covered by this certification; and
- [X] (3) All rules covered by this certification are filed within the prescribed time limitations of Section 120.54(3)(e), F.S. They are filed not less than 28 days after the notice required by Section 120.54(3)(a), F.S.; and [X] (a) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice; or
- [] (b) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not more than 60 days after the administrative law judge files the final order with the clerk or until 60 days after subsequent judicial review is complete; or
- [] (c) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 21 days nor more than 45 days from the date of publication of the notice of change; or
- [] (d) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 14 nor more than 45 days after the adjournment of the final public hearing on the rule; or
- [] (e) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date of receipt of all material authorized to be submitted at the hearing; or
- [] (f) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date the transcript was received by this agency; or
- [] (g) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice, not including days the adoption of the rule was postponed following notification from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee that an objection to the rule was being considered; or
- [] (h) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a good faith written proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative to a proposed rule is submitted which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the law being implemented; or
- [] (i) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a regulatory alternative is offered by the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Committee.

Attached are the original and two copies of each rule covered by this certification. The rules are hereby adopted by the undersigned agency by and upon their filing with the Department of State.

Rule No(s).

62-204.240

62-204.260

Under the provision of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the rules take effect 20 days from the date filed with the Department of State or a later date as set out below:

Effective:

(month) (day) (year)

Chief Deputy General Course

Number of Pages Certified

SUMMARY OF RULE

Re: Rule No.: 62-204.240, and 62-204.260, F.A.C.

Notice of Proposed Rule: November 10, 2011

OGC No.: 11-1085

Project: Rule Repeal, NAAQS and Nonattainment Designations

The proposed repeals updates Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., to remove obsolete provisions related to ambient air quality standards. The proposed changes will remove excess or redundant language to better align with Federal rule language.

> 2012 JAN 27 FM 3: 3: DEPARTMENT OF STAT

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES

JUSTIFYING PROPOSED RULE

Re: Rules 62-204.240, and 62-204.260, F.A.C.

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking: November 10, 2011

OGC No.: 11-1085

Project: Rule Repeal, NAAQS and Nonattainment Designations

FILED PL 3.39

Introduction

The proposed rule repeals remove duplicative provisions related to ambient air quality standards and prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) increments.

Need for Rule Change

Revisions are needed to Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., for efficient implementation of any new or revised National Ambient Air Quality Standards. As explained below, the proposed changes will remove excess or redundant language to better align with Federal rule language.

Summary of Rule Amendments

The specific rule amendments are as follows:

- Repeal of Rule 204.240 Ambient Air Quality Standards to eliminate duplicative standards. The standards set forth in this rule section are identical to, or less stringent than, current National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS), which are adopted by reference at Rule 62-204.800(1) and included in the definition of "ambient air quality standard" at Rule 62-210.200(27). The department will adopt future revisions to the NAAQS by reference at Rule 62-204.800, thereby eliminating the need to update this rule section in response to EPA actions.
- Repeal of Rule 204.260 Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments) to eliminate duplicative standards. The PSD increments set forth in this section are identical to the PSD increments set forth at 40 C.F.R. 52.21(c) and adopted by reference at Rule 62-204.800(3). A definition of

Detailed Statement of Facts and Circumstances - Chapter 62-204, F.A.C.

"maximum allowable increase" that references the federal rule will be added to Rule 62-210.200 in the proposed "PM2.5 and Nonattainment New Source Review" rulemaking project to precede these repeals. The department will adopt future revisions to the PSD increments by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., thereby eliminating the need to update this rule in response to EPA actions.

2
Detailed Statement of Facts and Circumstances - Chapter 62-204, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF THE HEARING

Re: Rule No.: 62-204.240, and 62-204.260, F.A.C.

Notice of Proposed Rule: November 10, 2011

OGC No.: 11-1085

Project: Rule Repeal, NAAQS and Nonattainment Designations

The Notice of Proposed Rule was published November 10, 2011, in the Florida Administrative Weekly (F.A.W.). A rule adoption hearing was held before the Environmental Regulation Commission (ERC) on December 8, 2011. The ERC approved the rule as noticed and no amendments were offered.

DEPARIMENT OF STATE

62-204.240 Ambient Air Quality Standards

Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History-New 3-13-96, Repealed

62-204.260 Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments).

Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History-New 3-13-96, Amended 2-12-06, Repealed......

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

AR. PORTO

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

V. S. p. 178

on release or take aution which would result in the referrer of an air politicant into the corresponse which would compe or contribute to a richtrine of an unbison air quality mandard extends should under Rolle (3-304-346), F.A.C.

(2) Execution of Significant Description (CSE). Prevention of Significant Description (CSE), the constraint of Significant Description (CSE), the constraints of significant of six as prevent authorities the constraints or modification of any emissions only or facility. construction of resolutions of any emission while or scenarios, that would counce or overlines in an ambient concentration on any point within a harding zero that econotic either the appropriate baseline continuentles. For the point plot any appropriate maximum allowable increase or the appropriate artifers are quality standard, whichever is less.

(1) Archive air quality marriest used to crashlet a virilation of an audition or quality standard shall even the requirement of 40 C.F.R. Pair SS, adequad and incorporated. by reference in Rule 63-264,866, F.A.C.

(4) For any provision of the six pollution rules of the Department which requires that an estimate of contentrations Department which requires that an extensive of contentrations of pollutation in the artificient air be made, the collisions chall be based on the applicable air quality models, data loans, and advar magnituments approved by the Department and specified in 49 C.F.M. Pari S1. Appendix W. Dubbleto Services, adapted and incorporated by references in Rule 62-294 200, F.A.C.

Specific durbanity ALMS FS, Low Implies 403-901, VIASOF FS, Manage Mee 3-13-90. ed 400,001, 400,000.

62-204240 Ambient Air Quality Standards

(1) Soffine Districts.

(a) Maximum three-most concentration not to be more ore from sesse per year -- 1300 returngrans per cubic m (0.5 ppm).
(0.0 blockmann 20-bour concentration, not to be endoaded.

re than once per year - 260 microproms per subtic moser (0.1 ppm).
(d) Annual arithmetic mess - 60 micrograph per cubic

meter (0.02 ppm). (2) PM₃.

(4) Twonty-four-hour average concentration not to be exceeded more than enter per year, Au determined in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Fort 50, Appendix K., adopted and incorporated by reference in Hule Egyl 14,800, F.A.C. – 150 with property of the contraction.

micrograms per tichic meter.

(b) Experted menul millionery mean concentration as determined in accordance with A C.S.R. Fun 50 Appendix

K = 50 micrograms per cabic refro.
(3) Carbon Mosocide.

(a) Maximum ang-haur suncremation not to be exceeded

of as a single exceedance. (c) Descriptional on all Compliance with Structure. At the

of each calendar year, the wimber of days with

sprimum hausty concentrations above 0.12 ppm shaft } determined as specified in subparagraph \$2-201.220(4)(a) F.A.C., below, and that number averaged with the results of immediately preceding two years' date, As long as this sylv

remains less then or apail in list, the tital is in compliance. The first meeting the Number of Econochross par Vices (Mice a void delay meetings the Number of Econochross par Vices (Mice a void delay meetings the Number of Wales) in an applicable free each day of the year. The following method that poet until the account for those calcains values when determining the member of executances for a particular calcada year. If you is not one owned observed excerdences each year, the standard is not ones and no requirement each to be not been all more of meeting without in account and of the particular to account for the philosophy values? means all days that the speciagns. The term "missing values in accountment. A daily resolution to considered in the rath if 75 percept of the fourth reason 291. A.M. to \$10.9 P.M. (USF) were excepted or if the highest fourth years in \$10.00 P.M. (USF) were excepted or if the highest fourth years in \$10.00 P.M. (USF) were excepted or if the highest fourth years in the standard A. A sinking daily mortices on once trates only the space of the standard A. an insing daily mortices on except the standard that proceedings day the plus exceed 25 percent of the level of the standard (USF) per in pithic stants. No assumption can be made if more than one complexitive day's data are mixing. The following expection shall be used to primate the number of except and years at the number of third daily maximum.

If the continued is under of exceptances for the year, ye is the number of daily values above the isometimal.

If the continued sumper of exceptances for the year. remains less than or upual to 1.4, the title is in compliance to) Entireating the Number of Excendences per Your

This continues number of exceedances shall be rounded to one declinal pilice if necional part equal to or greater than 0.08 results of (5) Jungan Disside. Automa arithmetic menn -- 100

glums per cishic meter (8.05 ppm). Load, Maximum quaterly neithmetic -- 1.5 Micrograms

perfective meter. Reference Australia (183 mil 183 Euro Implementari 1835.017, 1835.017). 1835/81, 1835/87 F. Barryo (1844.017).

60:384.048 Prometion of Significant Determination Maximum Allowship Incorumen (PSD Incorporate) by any locations within a bancline area, any increase in philameter concentrations shall be finished to the applicable amount set forth before. For any agricultural point of the applicable amount set forth before. For any agricultural point of the propriety of the agricultural and the arrange period, the applicable regional advantable incorporate any to exceeded during one hast period per year at any one location.

All Class I have becoment

(1) Class | Assa Increments.

64 Particulate Maner. Phi_m Assual atthracic men

2. PM to 24- hour magazinem

(b) Sultar Disnit. 1. Accord with nesis musa - two micrograms per cubi

nestet. 2. Troughtour-bour maireum – tive micrograms per tubi

Ç

SIAII

- (c) Nitrogra Dioxide. Aroual arithmetic mean microprono per cubic mutos.
 (2) Class III Arco Incoments.
- (a) Particulate Matter.
- Phin, Annual utilitatic mean 17 micrograms per
- 2. PM_m, Twenty-four-hoar retrievan 30/micrograms per cubic mease.
- (b) Suffer Dioxide.
- 1. Annual arithmetic mean 20 micrograms per cubic motion
- 2. Twenty-from-boor maximum 91 Nicrograms per cubic motor.
- 3. Three-hour maximum 517 micrograms per cubic mater.
- (6) Nitrogen Dioxide. Angeld arithmetic mean 25
- micrograms per cubic meter.
 (3) Class IIII Area Income;
- (b) Pretigatore Marton.
- 1. PM., Annual addynatic mean 34 micrograms per subjectment.
- 2. PM_n, 24-hour provincin = 60 micromans per cubic
- (b) Suffer Disside
- Assoul aplanete meso 40 micrograms per cubic
- I'vosty-four-hour maximum 182 mioregrams per subject meter
- 3. Togic-hour retainsum 700 micrograms per cubic motor.
- (c) Nimgen Director. Assured artiferrents mean 50
- Hilly Agreems per cable theirs. Substite Anthrocy MR SM PS, Low Implementary 823,531, 403,544, \$3,887 FE Hanny-New 3-13-68, Amended 3-12-68.

63-264,320 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas. (1) General.

- (a) Under subsections 62-204.349(1) through (3), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as attainment, constrainment, or unclussifiable with respect to each air pollution for which an ambient air quality mandard in exablished under Rule 63-204-246, F.A.C. The designation of each such area eletermines which emission limiting standards, new and modified facility review requirements, and other hir pollution coursel measures shall apply to sources and activities which emit the pollutant or the proumer of the poliutant for which the area is designated. Pollowing the redesignation of an area as negatisinment, a revision to the State Implementation Plan (SIP) may be required to enablish the emission limiting standards and
- offer air pallution control measures appropriate for the area.

 (b) Under subsection 62-344,340(1), F.A.C., all areas of the itals that are not designated as nonatulament with respect to a pollutant for which a maximum affewable increase is defined in Rule 62-284.260, F.A.C., shall be designated as one or reore prevention of significant deterioration (FSD) areas with respect to each such pollutars. The designation of a FSD area determines the area for which a PSD hoseline date shall be established.
- (c) Under subsections 62-204-360(2), F.A.C., all press of the state shall be devige and as Class I. Class II, or Class III. For an area that is designated as a PSD area, the designation of the area at Class I. If or III determines which not of

- maximum fallowable increases in particulate matter, publicdienide, and nitrogen dioxide concentrations established under Bale 62-284-360, F.A.C., chall apply in the area after a PSD heating day is egablished.
- (ii) Under subsection 62:204.348(4), F.A.C., certain areas of the state shall be designated as air quality maintenance areas.

 Areas that have been redesignated flore nonattainings: 10 attainment or unclassifiable may be designment as air quality maintenance areas with the effect that all emission limiting standards and permit limitations that were established purposes: to Rules 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510 (transferred), 17-2.650 (iransferred), 62-212-500, Chapter 63-252, and the Reasonably Available Control Technology rules in Chapter (3-34e, F.A.C., or otherwise as a result of the SIP or nonattainment corrective. plan, and all other sir pollution control measures that were required under the SIP or nessetalement corrective plan, shall remain in effect in such areas.
- (2) Rodesignation of Nonatainment, Attributers, and Unclassifishle Areas (Reserved).
- (3) Restrictification of Class I, Class II and Class III Areas.
- (a) Reclassification of an area classified under subsection 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., may be proposed by filling a petition for relevaning with the Environmental Regulation Commission showing culficient justification for such action provided that lands within the exercise boundaries of Indian Reservations may he reclassified only by the appropriate Indian Governing Body. This petition shall conform to the requirements of 120,54(5), F.S. The Department may also intrinte rectamification. procedures. All reclassifications shall be submitted as sevisions
- to the State Implementation Plan.

 (b) Devictions regarding whether an area should be retiles if fed shall be based on the fellowing criteria.
- 1. For arms which are proposed to be reclassified as Class I or Class II:
- A public housing shall be held in accordance with the notice requirements of Rails 62-204-400. F.A.C.
- b. At least 30 days notice of the proposed reclassification shall be given to other Status, Indian Governing Bodies, and Federal Land Managers whose lands only be affected by the proposal
- c. A description and analysis of the besith, environmental, economic, social, and energy effects of the proposed reclassification shall be prepared and made available for public importion at least 30 days prior to the hearing. The notice shall state the availability of the required analysis.
- d. If the reclassification includes any Federal lands, the state shall notify the Federal Land Manager of the proposal not more than 60 days prior to the houring and allow an opportunity for the Federal Land Manager to confer with the state and submit written comments and recommendations. If an area is reclussified against the recommendations of the Federal Land Manager. the state shall publish a notice lixing the inconsistencing and the reasons for reclassifying the area against the Federal Land Manager's recommendations in the Election Administrative Weekly.
- e. Prier to proposing a reclassification, the state shall confer with the elected leadership of any local general purpose government in the uses covered by the proposed reciseoffication.
- 2. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class III (except areas proposed to be reclassified by an Indian Governing Bodyl:
- of the requirements of 62-204.320(386)(L. F.A.C., above, shall be met.

Certification Package for Rule Amendments effective October 23, 2016

Note: This Certification Package is provided only in reference to amendments to Rule 62-204.500 F.A.C. DEP is not requesting that amendments to Rules 62-204.340 or 62-204.800, F.A.C., be considered in this submittal.



Florida Department of Environmental Protection

Bob Martinez Center 2600 Blair Stone Road Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Rick Scott Governor

Carlos Lopez-Cantera Lt. Governor

Jonathan P. Steverson Secretary

October 3, 2016

Mr. Ernest Reddick Program Administrator Administrative Code and Register 500 South Bronough Street, Room 101 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

Re: Certification Package for Rules 62-204.340, 62-204.500, and 62-204.800, F.A.C. OGC No: 15-0546

Dear Mr. Reddick:

Attached is the certification package for Rules 62-204.340, 62-204.500 and 62-204.800, F.A.C. I am the attorney handling this matter and if you have any questions please contact me at 245-2194, Benjamin.Melnick@dep.state.fl.us, or by mail at Department of Environmental Protection, Office of General Counsel, MS 35, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Or you may also contact Preston McLane at 717-9089, Preston.McLane@dep.state.fl.us, or by mail at Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Air Resource Management, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 5500, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

Sincerely,

Benjamin M. Melnick Assistant General Counsel

CERTIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify:

[x] (1) That all statutory rulemaking requirements of Chapter 120, F.S., and all rulemaking requirements of the Department of State have been complied with; and [x] (2) That there is no administrative determination under Section 120.56(2), F.S., pending on any rule covered by this certification; and [x] (3) All rules covered by this certification are filed within the prescribed time limitations of Section 120.54(3)(e), F.S. They are filed not less than 28 days after the notice required by Section 120.54(3)(a), F.S., and [x] (a) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice; or [] (b) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not more than 60 days after the administrative law judge files the final order with the clerk or until 60 days after subsequent judicial review is complete; or [] (c) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 21 days nor more than 45 days from the date of publication of the notice of change; or [] (d) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 14 nor more than 45 days after the adjournment of the final public hearing on the rule; or [] (e) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date of receipt of all material authorized to be submitted at the hearing; or [] (f) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date the transcript was received by this agency; or [] (g) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice, not including days the adoption of the rule was postponed following notification from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee that an objection to the rule was being considered; or [] (h) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a good faith written proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative to a proposed rule is submitted which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the law being implemented; or

the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Committee.

[] (i) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a regulatory alternative is offered by

Attached are the original	and two copies of the rule covered by thi	s certification. The rul	e is hereby adopted by the	
	nd upon its filing with the Department of			
	is upon its timing with the Department of	State.		
Rule No.(s)				
62-204.340, F.A.C.				
62-204.500, F.A.C.				
62-204.800, F.A.C.				
Under the provision of Se	ection 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the rule takes	effect 20 days from the	date filed with the	
Department of State or a l	ater date as set out below:			
	Effective:			
	(month)	(day)	(year)	
	Viett			
	Justin Wolfe			
	Deputy General Counsel			
	6			
	Number of Pages Certified			

- 62-204.340 Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas.
- (1) Designation of Areas Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Attainment Areas). As designated in 40 C.F.R.

 Part 81, §81.310, and as adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62 204.340(2)(a), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant ozone.
- (b) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62 204.340(2)(b), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under paragraph 62 204.340(3)(a), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant PM
- (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(c), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under paragraph 62-204.340(3)(b), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant sulfur dioxide.
- (d) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62 204.340(2)(d), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant earbon monoxide.
- (e) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62 204.340(2)(e), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant nitrogen dioxide.
- (2) Designation of Areas Not Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Nonattainment Areas). As designated in 40 C.F.R. Part 81, §81.310, and as adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (a) Ozone Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (b) PM Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (c) Sulfur Dioxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (d) Carbon Monoxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (e) Nitrogen Dioxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (f) Lead nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
- (g) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the effective date of redesignation in the Florida Administrative Register Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation.
- (3) Designation of Areas Which Cannot Be Classified as Attainment or Nonattainment (Unclassifiable Areas).

 As designated in 40 C.F.R. Part 81, §81.310, and as adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

1

- (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62 204.340(2)(b), F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant PM (b) The following areas are designated as unclassifiable for the pollutant sulfur dioxide. 1. Duval County. 2. Escambia County. 3. Hillsborough County. The Southwest corner of Pasco County. (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant lead. (4) No change. Rulemaking Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History-New 3-13-96, Amended 62-204.500 Conformity. (1) General Conformity. The provisions of this rule apply to state review of all federal general conformity determinations submitted to the state pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 9351, Subpart BW, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 9354, Subpart BW, federal agencies are required to make conformity determinations to ensure that certain federal actions are consistent with the State Implementation
- (a) Definitions. In addition to the definitions in Rule 62 204.200, F.A.C., The definitions used in reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the definitions in 40 C.F.R. Part 93, §93.152, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.51.852.
- (b) Criteria. The criteria for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the criteria in 40 C.F.R. Part 93, §93.158, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.51.858.
- (c) Procedures. The procedures for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the procedures in 40 C.F.R. Part 93, §93.159, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.51.859.
 - (d) No change.

Plan.

(2) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061 FS. History-New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, 3-23-97, 9-1-98,______.

62-204.800 Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference.

All federal regulations cited throughout the air pollution rules of the Department are adopted and incorporated by reference in this rule. The purpose and effect of each such federal regulation is determined by the context in which it is cited. Procedural and substantive requirements in the incorporated federal regulations are binding as a matter of state law only where the context so provides.

- (1) through (8) No change.
- (9) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 60, Emission Guidelines and Compliance Times.
- (a) through (e) No change.
- (f) Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration (CISWI) Units. 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart DDDD, Emission Guidelines and Compliance Times for Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration Units that Commenced Construction on or Before June 4, 2010, revised as of July 1, 2009, amended February 7, 2013, at 78 FR 9112 (https://www.flrules.org/gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-03695), amended June 23, 2016, at 81 FR 40956 (https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-07493), is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference subject to the following provisions (all cross-references to 40 C.F.R. 63 Subpart LLL [40 C.F.R. 63.1340 through 1359], as amended February 12, 2013, at 78 FR 10005, as amended July 27, 2015, at 80 FR 44771, are adopted and incorporated by reference at Paragraph 62-204.800(11)(b), F.A.C.):
 - 1. through 4. No change.
- 5. Emission Limitations and Operating Limits. The emission limitations and operating limits applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2670 through 60.2685, except that a unit in the waste-burning kiln subcategory may instead comply with an alternative production-based mercury emission limit of 58 pounds of mercury per million tons of clinker as specified in Table 4 as published February 7, 2013 at 78 FR 9112, 9122 (https://www.flrules.org/gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-03695).
- 6. Performance Testing. The performance testing requirements applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2690 and through 60.2695.
- 7. Initial Compliance Requirements. The initial compliance requirements applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2700 through 60.2706, except

that a waste-burning kiln complying with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C., must demonstrate initial compliance pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.1348(a)(5). The initial compliance test must begin on the first operating day following completion of the field testing and data collection that demonstrates that the continuous emissions monitoring system has satisfied the relevant performance acceptance criteria of Performance Specifications 12A or 12B in 40 C.F.R. 60 Appendix B. The notification required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.2760 shall also include notification of whether an owner or operator of a unit in the waste-burning kiln subcategory intends to comply with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C.

- 8. Continuous Compliance Requirements. The continuous compliance requirements applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2710 through 60.2725, except that a waste-burning kiln complying with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C., must demonstrate continuous compliance with this alternative limit pursuant to the procedures of 40 C.F.R. § 63.1348(b)(7), and 40 C.F.R. § 63.1349(b)(5).
- 9. Monitoring. The monitoring requirements applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(8)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2730 and through 60.2735. A unit in the waste-burning kiln subcategory complying with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C., must also monitor mercury pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 63.1350(k), the clinker production rate pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.1350(n). An owner of a waste burning kiln is not required to develop an emissions monitoring plan pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.1350(p)(1) through (p)(4) if the owner prepares the emissions monitoring plan required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 60.2710(k) and (l).
- 10. Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements. The recordkeeping and reporting requirements applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2740 through 60.2800. Units in the waste-burning kiln subcategory complying with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C., must also keep records of all data collected from the continuous flow rate monitoring system required by 40 C.F.R. § 63.1350(n), all data collected from the clinker production monitoring system required by 40 C.F.R. § 63.1350(d), and all calculated 30-operating day rolling average values derived from the mercury monitoring system. Units in the waste-burning kiln subcategory complying with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C., must also report all

deviations from the alternative production-based mercury limit in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2740 through 60.2800.

- 11. through 12. No change.
- 13. Definitions. The definitions applicable to each CISWI unit subject to paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., shall be the same as set forth in 40 C.F.R. §60.2875. For purposes of paragraph 62-204.800(9)(f), F.A.C., the definition of the term administrator means the department, except that the EPA is the administrator for purposes of 40 C.F.R. § 60.2030(c). The terms used but not defined in 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart DDDD, have the meaning given to them in the Clean Air Act and in 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subparts A, B, and CCCC. For units in the waste-burning kiln subcategory complying with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit in subparagraph 62-204.800(9)(f)5., F.A.C., the term operating day in 40 C.F.R. § 63.1348(a)(5), 40 C.F.R. § 63.1348(b)(7) and 40 C.F.R. § 63.1349(b)(5) means any 24-hour period beginning at 12:00 midnight during which the kiln produces any amount of clinker.
 - (g) through (h) No change.
 - (10) through (25) No change.
- (26) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 93, Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans. The following subparts of 40 C.F.R. Part 93, revised as of July 1, 2015 (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-07494), or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference. The provisions of 40 C.F.R. 93, Subpart A, Conformity to State or Federal Implementation Plans of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, Funded or Approved Under Title 23 U.S.C. or the Federal Transit Laws, revised as of July 1, 2001; amended August 6, 2002, at 67 FR 50808, are adopted and incorporated by reference.
- (a) 40 C.F.R. Part 93, Subpart A, Conformity to State or Federal Implementation Plans of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, Funded or Approved Under Title 23 U.S.C. or the Federal Transit Laws.
- (b) 40 C.F.R. Part 93, Subpart B, Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans.
 - (27) No Change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.087, 403.0872, 403.8055 FS.

History-New 3-13-96, Amended 6-25-96, 10-7-96, 10-17-96, 12-20-96, 4-18-97, 6-18-97, 7-7-97, 10-3-97, 12-10-97, $3-2-98,\ 4-7-98,\ 5-20-98,\ 6-8-98,\ 10-19-98,\ 4-1-99,\ 7-1-99,\ 9-1-99,\ 10-1-99,\ 4-1-00,\ 10-1-00,\ 1-1-01,\ 8-1-01,\ 10$ 4-1-02, 7-1-02, 10-1-02, 1-1-03, 4-1-03, 10-1-03, 1-1-04, 4-1-04, 7-1-04, 10-1-04, 1-1-05, 4-1-05, 7-1-05, 10-1-05, 1-1-05, $1-06,\ 4-1-06,\ 7-1-06,\ 9-4-06,\ 9-6-06,\ 1-8-07,\ 1-31-07,\ 4-2-07,\ 5-31-07,\ 7-2-07,\ 10-1-07,\ 2-1-08,\ 7-1-08,\ 10-1-0$ $6-08,\ 12-1-08,\ 11-18-09,\ 6-11-10,\ 7-1-10,\ 10-1-10,\ 12-30-10,\ 12-1-11,\ 12-1-12,\ 5-22-13,\ 12-17-13,\ 1-24-14,\ 1-14-15,$ 1-7-16,____.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES

JUSTIFYING PROPOSED RULE

Re: Rules 62-204.340, 62-204.500, and 62-204.800, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.)

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking: September 1, 2016

OGC No.: 15-0546

Project: Air Pollution Control - General Provisions

Introduction

Pursuant to Executive Orders 11-01, 11-72 and 11-211, which require the Department to identify and revise rules that are unnecessary, unnecessarily burdensome, or duplicative, the Department is proposing to revise two rule sections from Chapter 62-204, F.A.C. (Air Pollution Control – General Provisions): Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. (Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, and Maintenance Areas), and Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C. (Conformity). These revisions will update and revise outdated area designations and clarify language regarding general conformity. In addition, the Department is proposing to revise Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. (Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference), to amend Florida's Commercial Industrial Solid Waste Incinerator (CISWI) rule to provide for an equivalent alternative production-based mercury emission limit for units in the waste-burning kiln subcategory.

Need for Rule Change

The federal National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) designations of Attainment, Nonattainment, and Unclassifiable for Florida have been reflected, for convenience, in Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. However, because of the lag time between the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) changing of the area designations and the Department's subsequent amending of Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., the Department believes that it would more efficient to directly cite the federal designations as found in 40 C.F.R. Part 81, §81.310, and as adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection – Division of Air Resource Management Facts & Circumstances Justifying Proposed Rule – Rules 62-204.340, 62-204.500, and 62-204.800, F.A.C.

Page 1 of 4

The citations to federal conformity rules in Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C., have become outdated and needed to be revised to reflect the federal transfer of conformity requirements from 40 C.F.R. Part 51 Subpart W, Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans, to 40 C.F.R. Part 93 Subpart B, Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans. Because of this federal citation revision, 40 C.F.R. Part 93 Subpart B will also be adopted and incorporated by reference into Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

The Division is also revising Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., to provide an equivalent alternative production-based mercury emission limit for waste-burning kilns subject to Florida's CISWI rules. EPA specified in its final CISWI rule that an alternative production-based mercury emission limit of 58 pounds of mercury per million tons of clinker is equivalent to the concentration-based limit for waste-burning kilns specified in the CISWI regulations. See 78 Fed. Reg. 9,112, 9,122 (February 7, 2013). EPA's CISWI regulations provide that a state "may deviate from the format and content of the emission guidelines" provided that the state "demonstrate that [its] State plan is at least as protective as the emission guidelines contained in this subpart." 40 C.F.R. 60.2515(b). Because EPA specified that a production-based mercy emission limit of 58 pounds per million tons of clinker is equivalent to the concentration-based emission limit in the CISWI rules, this proposed revision to Florida's CISWI rules meets the requirements of 40 C.F.R. 60.2515(b). The revisions to Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., also include monitoring and recordkeeping requirements to ensure compliance with the production-based limit.

Summary of Rule Amendments

The specific rule amendments are as follows:

Rule Number	Detailed Explanation
62-204.340	Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., will be updated to reference the Code of Federal Regulations for
	air quality designations. This will revise references to now obsolete historic area
	designations for National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) by incorporating
	references to the Nonattainment Area in Hillsborough County for the 2010 Sulfur Dioxide

Florida Department of Environmental Protection – Division of Air Resource Management Facts & Circumstances Justifying Proposed Rule – Rules 62-204.340, 62-204.500, and 62-204.800, F.A.C.

Page 2 of 4

	(SO ₂) NAAQS, the Nonattainment Area in Nassau County for the 2010 SO ₂ NAAQS, and the Nonattainment Area in Hillsborough County for the 2008 Lead NAAQS, and clarifying previous area designations for Hillsborough County, including removal of a previous Lead Nonattainment Area designation. Statutes implemented: 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, and 403.087, F.S.
62-204.500	Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C., will be revised to update obsolete Code of Federal Regulation citations and add clarifying general conformity language. Statutes implemented: 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, and 403.087, F.S.
62-204.800	Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., will be revised to add an equivalent alternative production-based mercury emission limit for Commercial Industrial Solid Waste Incinerators in the waste-burning kiln subcategory. Revisions will include incorporating recordkeeping and reporting requirements in order for units to demonstrate compliance with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit and incorporating recent EPA revisions to 40 C.F.R. 60 Subpart DDDD (Emissions Guidelines and Compliance Times for Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration Units). Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., will also be updated to incorporate by reference 40 C.F.R. 93, which is referenced in the proposed changes to Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C. Statutes implemented: 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, and 403.087, F.S.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection – Division of Air Resource Management Facts & Circumstances Justifying Proposed Rule – Rules 62-204.340, 62-204.500, and 62-204.800, F.A.C. Page 3 of 4

SUMMARY OF THE RULE

Pursuant to Executive Orders 11-01, 11-72 and 11-211, which require the Department to identify and revise rules that are unnecessary, unnecessarily burdensome, or duplicative, the Department is proposing to revise two rule sections from Chapter 62-204, F.A.C. (Air Pollution Control – General Provisions): Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. (Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, and Maintenance Areas), and Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C. (Conformity). These revisions will update and revise outdated area designations and clarify language regarding general conformity. In addition, the Department is proposing to revise Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. (Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference), to amend Florida's Commercial Industrial Solid Waste Incinerator (CISWI) rule to provide for an equivalent alternative production-based mercury emission limit for units in the waste-burning kiln subcategory.

The federal National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) designations of Attainment, Nonattainment, and Unclassifiable for Florida have been reflected, for convenience, in Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. However, because of the lag time between the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) changing of the area designations and the Department's subsequent amending of Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., the Department believes that it would more efficient to directly cite the federal designations as found in 40 C.F.R. Part 81, §81.310, and as adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

The citations to federal conformity rules in Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C., have become outdated and needed to be revised to reflect the federal transfer of conformity requirements from 40 C.F.R. Part 51 Subpart W, Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans, to 40 C.F.R. Part 93 Subpart B, Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans. Because of this federal citation revision, 40 C.F.R. Part 93 Subpart B will also be adopted and incorporated by reference into Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

The Division is also revising Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., to provide an equivalent alternative production-based mercury emission limit for waste-burning kilns subject to Florida's CISWI rules. EPA specified in its final CISWI rule that an alternative production-based mercury emission limit of 58 pounds of mercury per million tons of clinker

is equivalent to the concentration-based limit for waste-burning kilns specified in the CISWI regulations. See 78

Fed. Reg. 9,112, 9,122 (February 7, 2013). EPA's CISWI regulations provide that a state "may deviate from the format and content of the emission guidelines" provided that the state "demonstrate that [its] State plan is at least as protective as the emission guidelines contained in this subpart." 40 C.F.R. 60.2515(b). Because EPA specified that a production-based mercy emission limit of 58 pounds per million tons of clinker is equivalent to the concentration-based emission limit in the CISWI rules, this proposed revision to Florida's CISWI rules meets the requirements of 40 C.F.R. 60.2515(b). The revisions to Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., also include monitoring and recordkeeping requirements to ensure compliance with the production-based limit.

Summary of Rule Amendments

The specific rule amendments are as follows:

Rule Number	Detailed Explanation
62-204.340	Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., will be updated to reference the Code of Federal Regulations for air quality designations. This will revise references to now obsolete historic area designations for National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) by incorporating references to the Nonattainment Area in Hillsborough County for the 2010 Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂) NAAQS, the Nonattainment Area in Nassau County for the 2010 SO ₂ NAAQS, and the Nonattainment Area in Hillsborough County for the 2008 Lead NAAQS, and clarifying previous area designations for Hillsborough County, including removal of a previous Lead Nonattainment Area designation. Statutes implemented: 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, and 403.087, F.S.
62-204.500	Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C., will be revised to update obsolete Code of Federal Regulation citations and add clarifying general conformity language. Statutes implemented: 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, and 403.087, F.S.

62-204,800

Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., will be revised to add an equivalent alternative production-based mercury emission limit for Commercial Industrial Solid Waste Incinerators in the waste-burning kiln subcategory. Revisions will include incorporating recordkeeping and reporting requirements in order for units to demonstrate compliance with the alternative production-based mercury emission limit and incorporating recent EPA revisions to 40 C.F.R. 60 Subpart DDDD (Emissions Guidelines and Compliance Times for Commercial and Industrial Solid Waste Incineration Units). Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., will also be updated to incorporate by reference 40 C.F.R. 93, which is referenced in the proposed changes to Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C. Statutes implemented: 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, and 403.087, F.S.



CERTIFICATION OF MATERIALS INCORPORATED

BY REFERENCE IN RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify pursuant to Rule 1-1.013, Florida Administrative Code:

[X] (1) That materials incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800 have been electronically filed with the Department of State.

[] (2) That because there would be a violation of federal copyright laws if the submitting agency filed the incorporated materials described below electronically, a true and complete paper copy of the incorporated materials are attached to this certification for filing. Paper copies of the incorporated materials below may be obtained at the agency by [include address(es)/location(s)].

List form number(s) and form title(s), or title of document(s) below:

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart DDDD, Published at Volume 81 of the Federal Register, Number 121, (June 23, 2016) pp 40956-41034

40 CFR Part 93; Subparts A and B, as of July 1, 2015

Under the provision of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the rule takes effect 20 days from the date filed with the

Department of State or a later date as set out below:

Justin Wolfe

Deputy General Counsel

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

To: Long, Terri

Cc: firules@dos.state.fl.us

Subject: 62-204.800 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved

Date: Monday, September 26, 2016 10:37:43 AM

Dear terril:

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the

Administrative Code and Register Staff.

The approved material is available in the Review/Modify Agency Reference Material list

(Agency Main Menu page). Rule Number: 62-204.800

Reference Number: Ref-07493; Reference Name: 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart DDDD

Reference Number: Ref-07494; Reference Name: 40 CFR Part 93

Click here to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff Florida Department of State

Public Participation

Notice of Opportunity to Submit Comments and Participate in Public Hearing

Florida Administrative Register

Volume 48, Number 130, July 6, 2022

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Air Resource Management, announces a hearing, if requested, to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: August 8, 2022, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Environmental Protection, Bob Martinez Center, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Room 195, Tallahassee, Florida.

The Department will hold the hearing, if requested, at the date, time and place above and will also offer accessibility through a teleconference option. The teleconference option is being provided to allow maximum public participation if the hearing is requested. Parties can access the teleconference by telephone (regular long-distance telephone charges will apply). Parties may access the teleconference at the following number: August 8, 2022, 1(888)585-9008, ID number: 416-112-909#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Pursuant to 40 CFR 51.102, the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) announces a public hearing, if requested, and opportunity to offer comments on a proposed revision to Florida's State Implementation Plan (SIP) under the Clean Air Act (CAA). This proposed SIP revision consists of the removal of outdated or superseded Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) requirements. The proposed SIP revision also incorporates amendments to F.A.C. rules to make Florida's SIP consistent with current rules. EPA incorporates F.A.C. rules into Florida's SIP on a rule-by-rule basis according to their state-established effective dates. The rule language that DEP is requesting be removed from, or amended within, Florida's SIP is contained in Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control-General Provisions.

A public hearing will be held, if requested, at the date and time, given above. The public hearing, if requested, will also be accessible via a teleconferencing service. It is not necessary that the hearing be held or attended for persons to comment on DEP's proposed revisions to Florida's pending SIP submission. Any comments or requests for a public hearing must be submitted by email to Elizabeth.Rogers@FloridaDEP.gov, and received no later than August 5, 2022. If no request for a public hearing is received, the hearing (and teleconference) will be cancelled, and notice of the cancellation will be posted at the following

https://floridadep.gov/events/month?field_county_tid=All&field_is_a_public_notice_value=Yes.

Persons may also contact Ms. Rogers at (850)717-9019 to find out if the hearing has been cancelled. The materials comprising DEP's revision to the pending SIP submission are accessible at the following website:

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/rules/regulatory.htm. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ms. Rogers by email at the above email address or by calling (850)717-9019.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ms. Terri Long at (850)717-9023 or Terri.Long@FloridaDEP.gov. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice). For more information, you may contact Ms. Long by email or by calling (850)717-9023.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

The Board of Medicine – North Probable Cause Panel announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited. DATE AND TIME: Friday, July 15, 2022, 10:00 a.m. EST or soon thereafter

PLACE: You may join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone through the following link: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/841195637. You may also join the meeting using your phone at the following number: (646)749-3122, access code: 841-195-637. To maximize your access to the meeting, the Department highly recommends that you download the GoToMeeting app on your computer, tablet, or smartphone prior to the meeting.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The panel will conduct a meeting related to public disciplinary cases.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: April Houston at (850)558-9858 or emailing her at April.Houston@flhealth.gov.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: April Houston at (850)558-9848 or emailing her at April.Houston@fthealth.gov. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice). If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: April Houston at (850)558-9848 or emailing her at April.Houston@flhealth.gov.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

The DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited. DATES AND TIMES: July 19, 2022, 9:00 a.m.; July 20, 2022, 9:00 a.m.

2702

Local Program and District Office Assistance to the Public

From: Long, Terri

asuarez@broward.org; long melissa; sanford@epchc.org; Palomino, Susana (RER); Wanda.Parker@ocfl.net; Laxmana.Tallam@fihealth.gov; Schneider, Sheila; "John Hickey"; Strong, Greg; Boatwright, Kelley M.; Andre To:

Jason: Iglehart, Jon

Rogers, Elizabeth; McLane, Preston; Read, Hastings Cc:

Florida State Implementation Plan 2022-04 - Districts/Local Programs Subject:

Date: Wednesday, July 6, 2022 1:40:00 PM

Attachments: FAR 62-204 SIP 7-6-22.pdf

Notice is hereby given that, pursuant to 40 CFR 51.102, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (Department) is accepting comments and will hold a public hearing, if requested, on a proposed revision of Florida's State Implementation Plan (SIP) for -Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control – General Provisions. Please find attached the notice of opportunity to offer comments or request a public hearing. This notice was published on July 6, 2022, in the Florida Administrative Register. The comment period for the proposed SIP revision will close on August 5, 2022. The public hearing, if requested, will be held on August 8, 2022.

The materials comprising Florida's 62-204 SIP revision can be accessed through this website: https://floridadep.gov/air/air-business-planning/content/air-regulatory-projects

If you have any questions, please contact Elizabeth Rogers at Elizabeth.Rogers@FloridaDEP.gov or (850) 717-9019.

Thank you,

Terri Long

Florida Department of Environmental Protection Division of Air Resource Management Office of Busines Planning/Regulatory Planning Section (850) 717-9023 Terri.long@FloridaDEP.gov

Public Comments on Pre-Hearing SIP Notice

DEP did not receive any public comments during the comment period.	

DEP Response to Public Comments

DEP did not receive any public comments during the comment period.

Pre-Hearing Submittal Letter



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF Environmental Protection

Bob Martinez Center 2600 Blair Stone Road Tallahassee, FL 32399-2400 Ron DeSantis Governor

Jeanette Nuñez Lt. Governor

Shawn Hamilton Secretary

Via Electronic Mail and State Planning Electronic Collaboration System

July 6, 2022

Mr. Daniel Blackman Regional Administrator U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) – Region 4 61 Forsyth Street, SW – Mail Code: 9T25 Atlanta, GA 30303-8909

Re: Pre-Hearing Submittal: Proposed Revision to State Implementation Plan – Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control - General Provisions Rule Removals and Amendments

Dear Mr. Blackman:

Notice is hereby given that, pursuant to 40 CFR 51.102, the Department of Environmental Protection (Department) is accepting comments and will hold a public hearing, if requested, on a proposed revision to Florida's State Implementation Plan (SIP) for — Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control - General Provisions Rule Removals and Amendments. The Department published the public notice in the Florida Administrative Register (FAR) on July 6, 2022. The comment period for the proposed SIP revision will close on August 5, 2022, and the public hearing, if requested, will be held on August 8, 2022.

This proposed SIP revision consists of the removal of outdated or superseded Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) requirements including the required CAA Section 110(l) noninterference demonstration. The proposed SIP revision also incorporates amendments to F.A.C. rules to make Florida's SIP consistent with current rules. EPA incorporates F.A.C. rules into Florida's SIP on a rule-by-rule basis according to their state-established effective dates. The rule language that DEP is requesting be removed from, or amended within, Florida's SIP is contained in Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control - General Provisions.

The Department has sent the complete pre-hearing SIP submittal package directly to the Air Planning & Implementation Branch via EPA's State Planning Electronic Collaboration System (SPeCS). The public notice and pre-hearing SIP submittal are enclosed. The Department requests that all comments on the Pre-Hearing SIP submittal be provided to

Mr. Daniel Blackman Page 2 of 2 July 6, 2022

the Department by August 5, 2022. If you have any questions, please contact Elizabeth Rogers at (850) 717-9019 or by email at <u>Elizabeth.Rogers@FloridaDEP.gov</u>.

Sincerely,

Jeffery F. Koerner, Director

Jeffing S. Kom

Division of Air Resource Management

JFK/tl

cc:

Caroline Freeman, Division Director, Air & Radiation Division, EPA Region 4; Lynorae Benjamin, Chief, Air Planning & Implementation Branch, EPA Region 4

Enclosure:

Pre-Hearing SIP 2022-04 - Chapter 62-204, F.A.C., Air Pollution Control - General Provisions Rule Removals and Amendments

EPA Comments on Pre-Hearing Submittal

On August 3, 2022, DEP received a letter from EPA stating that the Agency had no comments on Florida's proposed SIP revisions.



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 4
ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER
61 FORSYTH STREET
ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8960

August 3, 2022

Mr. Jeff Koerner Director Division of Air Resource Management Florida Department of Environmental Protection 2600 Blair Stone Road Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Dear Mr. Koerner:

Thank you for your letter dated July 6, 2022, transmitting a prehearing package regarding revisions to Florida's State Implementation Plan (SIP). Specifically, the prehearing package addressing amendments and removal of Chapters 62-204, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). We understand that this submittal is the subject of a public hearing on August 6, 2022, if requested, with written comments due by the close of business on August 6, 2022. We have completed our review of the prehearing submittal and offer no comments at this time.

Thank you for the opportunity to review the prehearing package. If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Joel Huey, Acting Chief, Air Regulatory Management Section at (404) 562-9104, or have your staff contact Ms. Tiereny Bell at (404) 562-9088.

Sincerely,

LYNORAE BENJAMIN Digitally signed by LYNORAE BENJAMIN Date: 2022.08.03 07:49:02

Lynorae Benjamin Chief Air Planning and Implementation Branch

cc: Hastings Read, Deputy Director, FDEP

DEP Response to EPA Comments

EPA's letter dated August 3, 2022, stated that the Agency had no comments on Florida's proposed SIP revision.

APPENDIX A – Chapter 62-204, F.A.C. – Coded Copy of Repealed Rules

Chapter 62-204, F.A.C. Coded (strikethrough) Copy of Rule Sections Requested to be Repealed

The Department is requesting the repealed Rules 62-204.100, 62-204.200, 62-204.220, 62-204.240, 62-204.260, 62-204.320, 62-204.360 and 62-204.400, F.A.C., be removed from Florida's SIP. The rulemaking process for repealing rule sections in their entirety in Florida does not require a coded copy (strikethrough) to be used in any portion of the official rulemaking process (i.e., Notice of Repeal, or Certification Package filed with the Florida Department of State.)

The Notice of Repeal that is published in the Florida Administrative Code includes the rule number, rule title, Rulemaking Authority, Law Implemented, and History note, with the addition of "Repealed_____". The published Notice of Repeals do not include coded rule language showing deletion via strikethrough formatting.

The Certification Package for any rule repeals filed with the Florida Department of State has different coding requirements than a rule amendment. The document should begin with the words, "The following rules are hereby repealed:" followed by the rule number and title of the rule or rules being repealed and the complete text of each repealed rule with a diagonal line drawn through the entire text of the rule. These Certification packages for the repealed rules requested to be removed from Florida's SIP are included in the State Administrative Materials section of this SIP

For clarity, the following are the versions of the rule sections prior to repeal, in their entirety, shown with language as deleted (strikethrough) for your use.

62-204.100 Purpose and Scope.

- (1) This chapter establishes maximum allowable levels of pollutants in the ambient air, or ambient air quality standards, necessary to protect human health and public welfare. This chapter also establishes maximum allowable increases in ambient concentrations for subject pollutants to prevent significant deterioration of air quality in areas where ambient air quality standards are being met. It further specifies approved air quality monitoring and modeling methods.
- (2) In addition, this chapter designates all areas of the state as attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable with respect to each pollutant for which ambient air quality standards have been adopted; further designates certain attainment and unclassifiable areas of the state as air quality maintenance areas for particular pollutants; classifies all areas of the state as Class I, Class II, or Class III for determining which set of prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) increments apply; and designates all attainment and unclassifiable areas of the state as one or more PSD areas for determining which pollutant specific PSD baseline dates apply. This chapter also sets forth procedures for redesignating and reclassifying areas as above.
- (3) The Department of Environmental Protection adopts this chapter to identify the Florida State Implementation Plan (SIP) required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51; to set forth the public notice and hearing requirements that the Department will adhere to for making SIP revisions; and to set forth

the definitions, criteria, and procedures that the Department will use to review a federal agency's general conformity determination, made pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart W; and to adopt by reference an interagency memorandum of agreement that the Department will comply with to review any transportation conformity determination, made pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart T. The provisions of 40 CFR 51.853 require that a federal agency make a general conformity determination for any federal agency action in a nonattainment or maintenance area, to ensure that such action is consistent with the SIP and that such federal conformity determination be reviewed by the affected state. The provisions of 40 CFR 51.394 require that a transportation conformity determination be made for the adoption, acceptance, approval, or support of certain transportation plans, transportation improvement programs, and transportation projects in nonattainment and maintenance areas for transportation related criteria pollutants to ensure that such actions are consistent with the SIP.

(4) Finally, this chapter adopts and incorporates by reference federal air pollution control regulations which are referenced in whole or in part throughout the Department's air pollution control rules.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.8055 FS. History—New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.200 Definitions.

The following words and phrases when used in this chapter, unless content clearly indicates otherwise, have the following meanings:

- (1) "Actual Emissions" The actual rate of emission of a pollutant from an emissions unit as determined in accordance with the following provisions.
 - (a) In general, actual emissions as of a particular date shall equal the average rate, in tons per year, at which the emissions unit actually emitted the pollutant during a consecutive 24-month period which precedes the particular date and which is representative of the normal operation of the emissions unit. The Department shall allow the use of a different time period upon a determination that it is more representative of the normal operation of the emissions unit. Actual emissions shall be calculated using the emissions unit's actual operating hours, production rates and types of materials processed, stored, or combusted during the selected time period.
 - (b) The Department may presume that unit-specific allowable emissions for an emissions unit are equivalent to the actual emissions of the emissions unit provided that such unit-specific allowable emissions limits are federally enforceable.
 - (c) For any emissions unit that has not begun normal operations on a particular date, actual emissions shall equal the potential emissions of the emissions unit on that date.
- (2) "Administrator" The Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency or the Administrator's designee.
- (3) "Air Pollutant" Any substance (particulate, liquid, gaseous, organic or inorganic) which if released, allowed to escape, or emitted, whether intentionally or unintentionally, into the outdoor atmosphere may result in or contribute to air pollution.
- (4) "Air Pollution" The presence in the outdoor atmosphere of the state of any one or more substances or pollutants in quantities which are or may be harmful or injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property, or unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property, including outdoor recreation.

- (5) "Air Quality Control Region" Any air quality control region designated pursuant to Section 107 of the Clean Air Act. The boundaries of the air quality control regions in Florida are set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 81, Sections 81.49, 81.68, 81.91, 81.95, 81.96 and 81.97, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (6) "Ambient Air Quality Standard" or "Ambient Standard" A restriction established to limit the quantity or concentration of an air pollutant that may be allowed to exist in the ambient air for any specific period of time.
 - (a) "National Ambient Air Quality Standard" means an ambient standard established by EPA and specified at 40 C.F.R. Part 50, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (b) "Primary Standard" means an ambient standard established to protect public health.
 - (c) "Secondary Standard" means an ambient standard established to protect the public welfare including the protection of animal and plant life, property, visibility and atmospheric clarity, and the enjoyment of life and property.
 - (d) "State Ambient Air Quality Standard" means an ambient standard established or adopted by the Department.
- (7) "Baseline Area" The area (and every part thereof) designated as a prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) area under Rule 62-204.360, F.A.C., in which the facility or major modification establishing the minor source baseline date would construct or in which the emissions of the facility (or the significant net increase in emissions for a major modification) would have a predicted air quality impact equal to or greater than one microgram per cubic meter (annual average) of the pollutant for which the minor source baseline date is established. For purposes of this definition, "major modification" has the meaning given at Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C.
- (8) "Baseline Concentration"—The ambient concentration level that exists in the baseline area at the time of the applicable minor source baseline date. A baseline concentration is determined for each pollutant for which a minor source baseline date is established and for each averaging time for which a maximum allowable increase is established in Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C.
 - (a) The baseline concentration shall include the concentration attributable to:
 - 1. The actual emissions representative of sources in existence on the applicable minor source baseline date, except as provided at paragraph 62-204.200(8)(b), F.A.C.; and 2. The federally enforceable allowable emissions of major stationary sources on which construction commenced on or before the major source baseline date but which were not in operation by the applicable minor source baseline date.
 - (b) The baseline concentration shall not include the concentration attributable to the following emissions; rather, such emissions shall affect the amount of any applicable maximum allowable increase remaining available:
 - 1. The actual emissions from any major stationary source on which construction commenced after the major source baseline date; and
 - 2. Any increase or decrease in the actual emissions of facilities occurring after the applicable minor source baseline date.
 - (c) For purposes of this definition, "construction" means any physical change or change in the method of operation (including fabrication, erection, installation, demolition, shutdown or modification of an emissions unit) that would result in a change in emissions; and "commence construction" has the meaning given at Rule 62-210.200,

- F.A.C., provided, however, that in the case of demolition or shutdown of an emissions unit, "commence construction" means that the owner or operator has permanently ceased all operations of the unit.
- (d) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (b) above:
 - 1. The change in concentration attributable to any decrease in the actual emissions of a facility on which the Department has relied in demonstrating attainment, defining reasonable further progress, or issuing a permit under the provisions of Rule 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510 (transferred), 17-2.650 (transferred), 62-212.500, 62-296.500 through 62-296.570, or 62-296.700 through 62-296.712, F.A.C., shall be included in the baseline concentration and not be considered in determining the amount of any maximum allowable increase remaining available; and
 - 2. Concentrations of particulate matter attributable to the increase in emissions from construction or other temporary emission related activities of new or modified facilities shall be excluded in determining compliance with any maximum allowable increase.
- (9) "Cause or Contribute" With respect to a violation of an ambient air quality standard, to have a significant impact on the ambient air concentration of a pollutant at any locality that does not or would not meet the applicable standard.
- (10) "Clean Air Act (CAA)" or "Act" The Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. s. 7401 et seq.)
- (11) "Department" The State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection.
- (12) "Emission" The discharge or release into the atmosphere of one or more air pollutants.
- (13) "Emission Limiting Standard" or "Emission Standard" or "Emission Limitation" or "Performance Standard" Any restriction established in or pursuant to a regulation adopted by the Department which limits the quantity, rate, concentration or opacity of any pollutant released, allowed to escape or emitted, whether intentionally or unintentionally, into the atmosphere, including any restriction which prescribes equipment, sets fuel specifications, or prescribes operation or maintenance procedures for an emissions unit to assure emission reduction or control.
- (14) "Emissions Unit" Any part or activity of a facility that emits or has the potential to emit any air pollutant.
- (15) "Environmental Protection Agency" or "EPA" The United States Environmental Protection Agency.
- (16) "Facility" All of the emissions units which are located on one or more contiguous or adjacent properties and which are under the control of the same person (or persons under common control).
- (17) "Federal Land Manager" With respect to any lands in the United States, the Secretary of the department with authority over such lands.
- (18) "Indian Governing Body" The governing body of any tribe, band, or group of Indians subject to the jurisdiction of the United States and recognized by the United States as possessing power of self-government.
- (19) "Indian Reservation" Any federally recognized reservation established by Treaty, Agreement, Executive Order, or Act of Congress.
- (20) "Major Source Baseline Date" Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 51.166(b)(14)(i), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.;
- (a) In the case of particulate matter and sulfur dioxide, January 6, 1975; and

- (b) In the case of nitrogen dioxide, February 8, 1988.
- (21) "Marginal Nonattainment Area for Ozone" The lowest category of five classifications of nonattainment for the air pollutant ozone as defined in the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. s. 7511).
- (22) "Minor Source Baseline Date" Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 51.166(b)(14)(ii), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., the minor source baseline date for each pollutant for which maximum allowable increases have been established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., is the earliest date after August 7, 1977, for particulate matter and sulfur dioxide, and February 8, 1988, for nitrogen dioxide, that a facility or a modification subject to preconstruction review under 40 C.F.R. 52.21, Rule 17-2.500, F.A.C. (transferred), or Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., submits a complete application for permit under such regulations provided that:
 - (a) On the date the complete application is filed, the area in which the facility or modification would be constructed is designated as attainment or unclassifiable for the applicable pollutant under 42 U.S.C. Section 7407(d)(1) of the Clean Air Act (if the application is filed under 40 C.F.R. 52.21), or as a PSD area under Rule 17-2.450 (transferred), 62-275.700 (repealed) or 62-204.360, F.A.C., (if the application is filed under Rule 17-2.500 (transferred) or 62-212.400, F.A.C.); and (b) In the case of a facility, the emissions of the applicable pollutant would be equal to or
 - (b) In the case of a facility, the emissions of the applicable pollutant would be equal to or greater than the significant emissions rate as defined at Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C., or, in the case of modification, there would be a significant net emissions increase of the pollutant.
- (23) "Moderate Nonattainment Area for Ozone" The second lowest category of five classifications of nonattainment for the air pollutant ozone as defined in the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. s. 7511).
- (24) "Modification" Any physical change in, change in the method of operation of, or addition to a facility which would result in an increase in the actual emissions of any air pollutant subject to regulation under the Act, including any not previously emitted, from any emissions unit or facility.
 - (a) A physical change or change in the method of operation shall not include:
 - 1. Routine maintenance, repair, or replacement of component parts of an emissions unit; or
 - 2. A change in ownership of an emissions unit or facility.
 - (b) For any pollutant that is specifically regulated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act, a change in the method of operation shall not include an increase in the hours of operation or in the production rate, unless such change would be prohibited under any federally enforceable permit condition which was established after January 6, 1975.
 - (c) For any pollutant that is not specifically regulated by the EPA under the Clean Air Act, a change in the method of operation shall not include an increase in the hours of operation or in the production rate, unless such change would exceed any restriction on hours of operation or production rate included in any applicable Department air construction or air operation permit.
- (25) "Nonattainment Area" Any area not meeting ambient air quality standards and designated as a nonattainment area under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. Such an area may be designated as a particulate, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide, carbon monoxide, lead or ozone nonattainment area, depending on which ambient standard has been violated. An area may be

designated as nonattainment for more than one air pollutant. Ozone nonattainment areas may be transitional, marginal, moderate, serious, severe, or extreme as classified in Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C.

(26) "Particulate Matter".

- (a) With respect to concentrations in the atmosphere, particulate matter means any airborne finely divided solid or liquid material.
- (b) With respect to emissions, particulate matter means all finely divided solid or liquid material, other than uncombined water, emitted to the atmosphere as measured by applicable reference methods, or an equivalent or alternative method, specified in 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix A, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

(27) "PM₁₀".

- (a) With respect to concentrations in the atmosphere, PM₁₀ means particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal ten (10) micrometers as measured by a reference method based on 40 C.F.R. Part 50, Appendix J, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., and designated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 53 or by an equivalent method designated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 53, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (b) With respect to emissions, PM₁₀ means finely divided solid or liquid material, with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal ten (10) micrometers emitted to the atmosphere as measured by an applicable reference method or by an equivalent or alternative method specified in 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Appendix M, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (28) "Redesignation of an Area" A change in the designation or a redefinition of the boundaries of an area for any of the designations listed under Rule 62-204.340 or 62-204.360, F.A.C.
- (29) "Significant Impact" An impact of emissions on ambient air quality in excess of any of the following pollutant specific concentration values:

(a) Sulfur Dioxide.

- 1. Maximum three-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 25.0 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 2. Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 1.0 microgram per cubic meter for Class I areas; 5.0 micrograms per cubic meter for all other areas.
- 3. Annual arithmetic mean 1.0 microgram per cubic meter.

(b) PM₁₀.

- 1. Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 1.0 microgram per cubic meter for Class I areas; 5.0 micrograms per cubic meter for all other areas.
- 2. Annual arithmetic mean 1.0 microgram per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean—1.0 microgram per cubic meter.

(d) Carbon Monoxide.

- 1. Maximum one hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 2.0 milligrams per cubic meter.
- 2. Maximum eight-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 0.5 milligram per cubic meter.

(e) Lead. Maximum quarterly arithmetic mean — 0.03 microgram per cubic meter. (30) "State Implementation Plan (SIP)" or "Implementation Plan" — The EPA approved plan which Section 110 of the Clean Air Act requires a state to submit to the Administrator. The State Implementation Plan for the State of Florida, as approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, is identified in 40 C.F.R. Part 52, Subpart K, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.8055 FS. History—New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, 2-12-06, 10-6-08, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.220 Ambient Air Quality Protection.

- (1) Except as provided in Rule 62-212.500, F.A.C., Preconstruction Review for Nonattainment Areas, or in the Reasonably Available Control Technology rules of Chapter 62-296, F.A.C., the Department shall not issue an air permit authorizing a person to build, erect, construct, or implant any new emissions unit; operate, modify, or rebuild any existing emissions unit; or by any other means release or take action which would result in the release of an air pollutant into the atmosphere which would cause or contribute to a violation of an ambient air quality standard established under Rule 62-204.240, F.A.C.
- (2) Except as provided in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), the Department shall not issue an air permit authorizing the construction or modification of any emissions unit or facility that would cause or contribute to an ambient concentration at any point within a baseline area that exceeds either the appropriate baseline concentration for the point plus the appropriate maximum allowable increase or the appropriate ambient air quality standard, whichever is less.
- (3) Ambient air quality monitors used to establish a violation of an ambient air quality standard shall meet the requirements of 40 CFR Part 58, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
- (4) For any provision of the air pollution rules of the Department which requires that an estimate of concentrations of pollutants in the ambient air be made, the estimates shall be based on the applicable air quality models, data bases, and other requirements approved by the Department and specified in 40 CFR Part 51, Appendix W Guideline on Air Quality Models (Revised), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History—New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.240 Ambient Air Quality Standards.

- (1) Sulfur Dioxide.
 - (a) Maximum three hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 1300 micrograms per cubic meter (0.5 ppm).
 - (b) Maximum 24-hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year -- 260 micrograms per cubic meter (0.1 ppm).
- (c) Annual arithmetic mean 60 micrograms per cubic meter (0.02 ppm). (2) PM10.

- (a) 24-hour average concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year, as determined in accordance with 40 CFR Part 50, Appendix K, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. 150 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (b) Expected annual arithmetic mean concentration as determined in accordance with 40 CFR Part 50 Appendix K -- 50 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (3) Carbon Monoxide.
 - (a) Maximum one hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year -- 35 parts per million (40 milligrams per cubic meter).
 - (b) Maximum eight hour concentration not to be exceeded more than once per year 9 parts per million (10 milligrams per cubic meter).
- (4) Ozone. Daily maximum one hour concentration, not to be exceeded an average of more than one day per year 0.12 parts per million (235 micrograms per cubic meter).
 - (a) Exceedances. An exceedance will occur for any calendar day when the maximum hourly average concentration for that day exceeds the standard. A day with more than one hourly value exceeding the standard shall count as a single exceedance.
 - (b) Determination of Compliance with Standard. At the end of each calendar year, the number of days with maximum hourly concentrations above 0.12 ppm shall be determined as specified in Rule 62-204.220(4)(a)3., F.A.C., below, and that number averaged with the results of the immediately preceding two year's data. As long as this average remains less than or equal to 1.0, the site is in compliance.
 - (c) Estimating the Number of Exceedances per Year. When a valid daily maximum hourly average value is not available for each day of the year, the following method shall be used to account for those missing values when determining the number of exceedances for a particular calendar year. If a site has two or more observed exceedances each year, the standard is not met and no requirement exists to account for the missing values in accordance with this paragraph. The term "missing values" means all days that do not have an associated ozone measurement. A daily maximum ozone value is the highest hourly ozone value recorded for that day. This daily maximum is considered to be valid if 75 percent of the hours from 9:01 A. M. to 9:00 P. M. (LST) were measured or if the highest hourly value is greater than the level of the standard. A missing daily maximum ozone value may be assumed to be less than the level of the standard if the valid daily maxima on both the preceding day and the following day do not exceed 75 percent of the level of the standard (0.09 ppm in this case). No assumption can be made if more than one consecutive day's data are missing. The following equation shall be used to estimate the number of exceedances for the year:
 - e = v + (v/n) (N n z); where:
 - e the estimated number of exceedances for the year;
 - v = the number of daily values above the standard;
 - n = the number of valid daily maxima;
 - N the number of days in the year; and
 - z = the number of days assumed to be less than the standard level.
 - This estimated number of exceedances shall be rounded to one decimal place (fractional part equal to or greater than 0.05 rounds up).
- (5) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 100 micrograms per cubic meter (0.05 ppm).
- (6) Lead. Maximum quarterly arithmetic -- 1.5 Micrograms per cubic meter.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History—New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.260 Prevention of Significant Deterioration Maximum Allowable Increases (PSD Increments).

At any location within a baseline area, any increase in pollutant concentration over the baseline concentration shall be limited to the applicable amount set forth below. For any averaging period other than the annual period, the applicable maximum allowable increase may be exceeded during one such period per year at any one location.

(1) Class I Area Increments.

- (a) Particulate Matter.
 - 1. PM₁₀, Annual arithmetic mean 4 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. PM₁₀, Twenty-four hour maximum 8 micrograms per cubic meter.

(b) Sulfur Dioxide.

- 1. Annual arithmetic mean 2 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 2. Twenty-four hour maximum 5 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 3. Three hour maximum 25 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 2.5 micrograms per cubic meter. (2) Class II Area Increments.
 - (a) Particulate Matter.
 - 1. PM₁₀, Annual arithmetic mean 17 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. PM₁₀, Twenty-four hour maximum 30 micrograms per cubic meter.

(b) Sulfur Dioxide.

- 1. Annual arithmetic mean 20 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 2. Twenty-four hour maximum 91 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 3. Three-hour maximum 512 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 25 micrograms per cubic meter. (3) Class III Area Increments.
 - (a) Particulate Matter.
 - 1. PM₁₀, Annual arithmetic mean 34 micrograms per cubic meter.
 - 2. PM₁₀, Twenty-four hour maximum 60 micrograms per cubic meter.

(b) Sulfur Dioxide.

- 1. Annual arithmetic mean 40 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 2. Twenty-four hour maximum 182 micrograms per cubic meter.
- 3. Three hour maximum 700 micrograms per cubic meter.
- (c) Nitrogen Dioxide. Annual arithmetic mean 50 micrograms per cubic meter.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History—New 3-13-96, Amended 2-12-06, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.320 Procedures for Designation and Redesignation of Areas.

(1) General.

(a) Under Rules 62-204.340(1) through (3), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable with respect to each air pollutant for which an ambient air quality standard is established under Rule 62-204.240,

- F.A.C. The designation of each such area determines which emission limiting standards, new and modified facility review requirements, and other air pollution control measures shall apply to sources and activities which emit the pollutant or the precursor of the pollutant for which the area is designated. Following the redesignation of an area as nonattainment, a revision to the State Implementation Plan (SIP) may be required to establish the emission limiting standards and other air pollution control measures appropriate for the area.
- (b) Under Rule 62-204.360(1), F.A.C., all areas of the state that are not designated as nonattainment with respect to a pollutant for which a maximum allowable increase is defined in Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., shall be designated as one or more prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) areas with respect to each such pollutant. The designation of a PSD area determines the area for which a PSD baseline date shall be established. (c) Under Rule 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., all areas of the state shall be designated as Class I, Class II, or Class III. For an area that is designated as a PSD area, the designation of the area as Class I, II or III determines which set of maximum allowable increases in particulate matter, sulfur dioxide, and nitrogen dioxide concentrations established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C., shall apply in the area after a PSD baseline date is established. (d) Under Rule 62-204.340(4), F.A.C., certain areas of the state shall be designated as air quality maintenance areas. Areas that have been redesignated from nonattainment to attainment or unclassifiable may be designated as air quality maintenance areas with the effect that all emission limiting standards and permit limitations that were established pursuant to Rules 17-2.17 (repealed), 17-2.510 (transferred), 17-2.650 (transferred), 62-212.500, Chapter 62-252, and the Reasonably Available Control Technology rules in Chapter 62-296, F.A.C., or otherwise as a result of the SIP or nonattainment corrective plan, and all other air pollution control measures that were required under the SIP or nonattainment corrective plan, shall remain in effect in such areas.
- (2) Redesignation of Nonattainment, Attainment, and Unclassifiable Areas (Reserved).
- (3) Reclassification of Class I, Class II and Class III Areas.
 - (a) Reclassification of an area classified under Rule 62-204.360(2), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petition for rulemaking with the Environmental Regulation Commission showing sufficient justification for such action provided that lands within the exterior boundaries of Indian Reservations may be reclassified only by the appropriate Indian Governing Body. This petition shall conform to the requirements of Section 120.54(5), Florida Statutes. The Department may also initiate reclassification procedures. All reclassifications shall be submitted as revisions to the State Implementation Plan.
 - (b) Decisions regarding whether an area should be reclassified shall be based on the following criteria.
 - 1. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class I or Class II:

 a. A public hearing shall be held in accordance with the notice
 - b. At least 30 days notice of the proposed reclassification shall be given to other States, Indian Governing Bodies, and Federal Land Managers whose lands may be affected by the proposal.
 - e. A description and analysis of the health, environmental, economic, social, and energy effects of the proposed reclassification shall be

requirements of Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C.

prepared and made available for public inspection at least 30 days prior to the hearing. The notice shall state the availability of the required analysis. d. If the reclassification includes any Federal lands, the state shall notify the Federal Land Manager of the proposal not more than 60 days prior to the hearing and allow an opportunity for the Federal Land Manager to confer with the state and submit written comments and recommendations. If an area is reclassified against the recommendations of the Federal Land Manager, the state shall publish a notice listing the inconsistencies and the reasons for reclassifying the area against the Federal Land Manager's recommendations in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

- e. Prior to proposing a reclassification, the state shall confer with the elected leadership of any local general purpose government in the area covered by the proposed reclassification.
- 2. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class III (except areas proposed to be reclassified by an Indian Governing Body):
 - a. All of the requirements of Rule 62-204.320(3)(b)1., F.A.C., above, shall be met.
 - b. The proposal shall be specifically approved by the Governor after consultation with the appropriate committees of the legislature, if it is in session, or with the leadership of the legislature, if it is not in session.

 c. Each unit of local general purpose government representing a majority of the residents of the area to be reclassified shall enact or adopt a resolution or other legislation concurring in the reclassification.

 d. The reclassification may not cause or contribute to a violation of any state or national ambient air quality standard, or a violation of a maximum
 - e. To the extent practicable, any permit application and supporting documentation for a facility subject to Rule 62–212.400, F.A.C., which could receive a permit only if the area in question were reclassified as Class III, shall be made available for public inspection prior to the hearing on reclassification.
- 3. For areas which are proposed to be reclassified as Class I, Class II, or Class III by an Indian Governing Body:

allowable increase in any other Class I, Class II, or Class III area.

- a. All of the requirements of Rule 62-204.320(3)(b)1., F.A.C., and the additional requirements of Rules 62-204.320(3)(b)2.d. and e., F.A.C., shall be met, or equivalent procedures shall be followed.
- b. Prior to proposing the reclassification, the Indian Governing Body shall consult with the state within which the Indian Reservation is located and any state which borders the Indian Reservation.
- (c) The following areas shall not be reclassified as Class III:
 - 1. An area which, as of August 7, 1977, exceeded ten thousand acres in size and was a national monument, a national primitive area, a national preserve, a national recreation area, a national wild and scenic river, a national wildlife refuge, or a national lakeshore or seashore; or
 - 2. A national park or national wilderness area established after August 7, 1977, which exceeds ten thousand acres in size.

- (d) Any area other than an area referred to in Rule 62–204.320(3)(c)1. or 2., F.A.C., above, or an area designated as Class I under Rule 62–204.360(2)(a)2., F.A.C., may be reclassified as Class III.
- (4) Designation or Redesignation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Areas.
 (a) Designation or redesignation of an area designated under Rule 62-204.360(1), F.A.C., may be proposed by filing a petition for rulemaking with the Environmental Regulation Commission. The petition shall conform to the requirements of Section 120.54(5), Florida Statutes. The Department may also initiate designation or redesignation procedures.
 - (b) PSD areas shall be designated only for those pollutants for which maximum allowable increases have been established under Rule 62-204.260, F.A.C.
 - (c) A PSD area for a pollutant shall not include any areas designated nonattainment for the pollutant under Rule 62-204.240(2), F.A.C.
 - (d) A PSD area may not be redesignated if the redesignation would result in the violation of any maximum allowable increase in the area proposed to be redesignated.
 - (e) Procedures for proposing the designation or redesignation of PSD areas are as follows:
 - 1. A public hearing shall be held in accordance with the notice requirements of Rule 62-204.400, F.A.C.
 - 2. At least 30 days notice of the hearing shall be given to Federal Land Managers whose lands may be affected by the proposed designation or redesignation.
 - 3. The petition for rulemaking shall be made available for public inspection at least 30 days prior to the hearing and shall include a description and analysis of the health, environmental, economic, social and energy effects of the proposed designation or redesignation.
- (5) Designation or Redesignation of Air Quality Maintenance Areas (Reserved).

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History—New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.360 Designation of Prevention of Significant Deterioration Areas.

- (1) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant particulate matter: (a) All of the state except those areas designated under Rule 62-204.360(1)(b), F.A.C., below. The particulate matter minor source baseline date established for this area is December 27, 1977.
 - (b) No other areas of the state.
- (2) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant sulfur dioxide:
 (a) All of the state except those areas designated nonattainment under Rule 62-204.340(2), F.A.C., and those areas designated under Rule 62-204.360(2)(b), F.A.C., below. The sulfur dioxide minor sourse baseline date established for this area is December 27, 1977.
 - (b) No other areas of the state.
- (3) The following areas are designated as PSD areas for the air pollutant nitrogen dioxide: (a) All of the state except those areas designated under Rule 62-204.360(3)(b), F.A.C., below. The nitrogen dioxide minor source baseline date established for this area is March 28, 1988.

- (b) No other areas of the state.
- (4) All areas of the state shall be classified as Class I, Class II, or Class III.
 - (a) Class II Areas. All areas of the state are designated Class II except for those areas specified in Rule 62-204.360(4)(b), F.A.C., below.
 - (b) Class I Areas. The following areas are designated as Class I areas and shall not be reclassified.
 - 1. Everglades National Park.
 - 2. Chassahowitzka National Wilderness Area.
 - 3. St. Marks National Wilderness Area.
 - 4. Bradwell Bay National Wilderness Area.
- (5) Federally designated Class I Areas outside of Florida but within 100 kilometers of the state are as follows:
 - (a) Okefenokee National Wilderness Area.
 - (b) Wolf Island National Wilderness Area.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History—New 3-13-96, Repealed 2-16-12.

62-204.400 Public Notice and Hearing Requirements for State Implementation Plan Revisions.

- (1) The Department shall hold a public hearing prior to adoption of any proposed revision to the Florida State Implementation Plan (SIP).
 - (a) In addition to the notice required by Section 120.54, F.S., for rulemaking, the Department shall publish notice of the hearing by prominent advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in each air quality control region affected at least 30 days prior to the hearing. The notice shall specify the date, time, and place of the hearing and state that a copy of the proposed SIP revision is available for public inspection in each affected region.
 - (b) The Department shall also furnish a copy of the notice and proposed SIP revision to:
 - 1. The Region IV office of the EPA;
 - 2. Each local air pollution control agency in an affected region; and
 - 3. In the case of an interstate air quality control region, each other state included in whole or in part in the region.
- (2) A record of the public hearing, including a list of witnesses together with the text of each presentation, shall be made available by the Department to the Administrator upon his/her request.
- (3) The Department shall include with each proposed SIP revision submitted to the EPA a certification that the hearing was held in accordance with the notice required by Rule 62-204.400(1)(a), F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.8055 FS. History–New 11-30-94, Amended 10-6-08, Repealed 2-16-12.

APPENDIX B

Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. – Coded Copy to be Removed from Florida SIP

Though not repealed, DEP requests that Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., "Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, Unclassifiable, and Maintenance Areas," also be removed from Florida's SIP because it is unnecessary. As adopted into the SIP, Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., effective March 13, 1996, lists out-of-date area designations and includes the unnecessary requirement to publish notice of the effective date of any redesignation. Florida's current area designations can be found in 40 CFR 81.310, which DEP has adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., "Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference."

62-204.340 Designation of Attainment, Nonattainment, and Maintenance Areas.

- (1) Designation of Areas Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Attainment Areas).
 - (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(a), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant ozone.
 - (b) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(b), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under paragraph 62-204.340(3)(a), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant PM₁₀.
 - (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(c), F.A.C., or as unclassifiable under paragraph 62-204.340(3)(b), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant sulfur dioxide.
 - (d) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(d), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant carbon monoxide.
 - (e) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(e), F.A.C., is designated as attainment for the air pollutant nitrogen dioxide.
- (2) Designation of Areas Not Meeting Ambient Air Quality Standards (Nonattainment Areas).
 - (a) Ozone Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (b) PM₁₀ Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (c) Sulfur Dioxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (d) Carbon Monoxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (e) Nitrogen Dioxide Nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (f) Lead nonattainment Areas. (Reserved).
 - (g) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the effective date of redesignation in the Florida Administrative Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation.
- (3) Designation of Areas Which Cannot Be Classified as Attainment or Nonattainment (Unclassifiable Areas).
 - (a) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under paragraph 62-204.340(2)(b), F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant PM₁₀.
 - (b) The following areas are designated as unclassifiable for the pollutant sulfur dioxide.
 - 1. Duval County.
 - 2. Escambia County.
 - 3. Hillsborough County.

- 4. The Southwest corner of Pasco County.
- (c) All of the state except those areas designated as nonattainment under Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C., is designated as unclassifiable for the air pollutant lead.
- (4) Designation of Air Quality Maintenance Areas.
 - (a) Each of the following areas is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant ozone:
 - 1. Orange County.
 - 2. Duval County.
 - 3. The area consisting of Broward, Dade, and Palm Beach Counties.
 - 4. The area consisting of Hillsborough and Pinellas Counties.
 - (b) Each of the following areas is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant, particulate matter:
 - 1. That portion of Hillsborough County which falls within the area of the circle having a centerpoint at the intersection of U. S. 41 South and State Road 60 and a radius of 12 kilometers.
 - 2. The downtown Jacksonville area in Duval County located within the following boundary lines: south and then west along the St. Johns River from its confluence with Long Branch Creek, to Main Street; north along Main Street to Eighth Street; east along Eighth Street to Evergreen Avenue; north along Evergreen Avenue to Long Branch Creek; and east along Long Branch Creek to the St. Johns River.
 - (c) Effective January 1, 1996, the area encompassed within a radius of five kilometers centered at UTM coordinates: 364.0 kilometers East, 3093.5 kilometers North, zone 17, in Hillsborough County, is designated as an air quality maintenance area for the air pollutant lead.
 - (d) As soon as practicable after notice of redesignation is published by the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register, the Department shall publish notice of the effective date of redesignation in the Florida Administrative Weekly and a newspaper of general circulation in each county affected by the redesignation.

Specific Authority 403.061 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.031, 403.061, 403.087 FS. History New 3-13-96.

APPENDIX C Rule 62-204.500, F.A.C. – Coded Copy

62-204.500 - Conformity

- (1) General Conformity. The provisions of this rule apply to state review of all federal general conformity determinations submitted to the state pursuant to 40 CFR Part <u>9351</u>, Subpart <u>BW</u>, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. Pursuant to 40 CFR Part <u>9351</u>, Subpart <u>BW</u>, federal agencies are required to make conformity determinations to ensure that certain federal actions are consistent with the State Implementation Plan.
 - (a) Definitions. The definitions used in reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the definitions in 40 CFR Part 93, §93.152, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (b) Criteria. The criteria for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the criteria in 40 CFR Part 93, §93.158, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (c) Procedures. The procedures for reviewing federal general conformity determinations shall be the procedures in 40 CFR Part 93, §93.159, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.
 - (d) Mitigation of Air Quality Impacts.
 - 1. A federal general conformity determination submitted to the Department for review must contain, at a minimum, the following before the Department can make a positive finding of conformity in its review.
 - a. Any measures that are intended to mitigate air quality impacts must be identified, and the process for implementation and enforcement of such measures must be described including an implementation schedule containing explicit timelines for implementation.
 - b. Written commitments to take any mitigation measures from all persons or agencies committing to such measures.
 - 2. A positive finding of conformity by the Department in any review of a federal general conformity determination is expressly based, in part, on reliance that all written commitments for mitigation measures shall be fulfilled by the timelines set out in such written commitments. Failure to fulfill such mitigation measures by the explicit timelines expressed in the written commitments shall nullify a positive Department review finding of conformity as of midnight of the date of the unfulfilled expressed timeline.
- (2) Transportation Conformity. Pursuant to 40 CFR 93.105, adopted and incorporated by reference at Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C., the Department has certain consultation and conflict resolution responsibilities in the transportation conformity process. The Department will carry out these responsibilities for transportation conformity pursuant to the interagency memorandum of agreement as revised in 1998, and hereby adopted and incorporated by reference.

History- -New 11-30-94, Amended 3-13-96, 3-23-97, 9-1-98, 10-23-16.